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Narrative Report

Introduction

This narrative provides an overview for Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council, and
is an accompanying narrative for the 2022/23 Annual Audited Accounts.

It sets the context of the Council, outlining corporate governance, performance requirements and
financial performance.

The Audited Annual Accounts 2022/23 can be found in the main body of this report.

The Council's financial performance for the year ended 31st March 2023 is as set out in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and its financial position is as set out in the
Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement.

These financial statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom for the year ended 31st March 2023 (the Code) and the
Department for Communities Accounts Directions, Circular LG 07/2023. It is the purpose of this
foreword to explain, in an easily understandable way, the financial facts in relation to the Council.

This Statement of Accounts explains Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council’s
finances during the financial year 2022/23 and its financial position at the end of that year. It follows
approved accounting standards and is necessarily technical in parts.

The purpose of the Narrative Report is to provide information on the Council, its main objectives and
strategies and the principal risks it faces,

Group Accounts

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider all their interests and to prepare a full set of group
financial statements where they have material interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council does not have material interests in such
bodies and accordingly is not required to prepare group financial statements.

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement, as set out on page 44, shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services
in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded
from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may
be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

The Movement in Reserves Statement

This Statement, as set out on page 45, shows the movement in the year on the different reserves
held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure
or reduce local taxation) and ‘unusable reserves’. The 'Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of
services' line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council's services, further details of
which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES). These are
different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Local
Tax purposes. The 'Net increase/decrease before transfers to Earmarked Reserves’ line shows the
statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves
undertaken by the Council.



The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet, as set out on page 46, shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the
Council's assets and liabilities. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by
the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of
reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may use to provide services,
subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use
(for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or
repay debt). The second category of reserves are those that the Council is not able to use to provide
services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for
example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services
if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves
Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding under regulations’.

The Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during
the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of
net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations
of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services
provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been
made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council’s future service delivery. Cash
flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers
of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council.

Corporate Governance

Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council has 41 democratically elected members,
representing 7 District Electoral Areas.

Armagh Banbridge Craigavon District Electoral Areas
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The Council meets once a month to discuss, oversee and ratify decisions taken by Committees. It
has 5 Committees that meet monthly and a Performance and Audit Committee that meets quarterly.
An Annual General Meeting is held each year when a Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor are
elected. Chairs and Vice-Chairs of Committees are also elected at the Annual General Meeting.
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The six committees that report to full council meetings

Council has wide ranging responsibilities, making strategically important decisions that will affect
future generations, and it is in this context that everyone is encouraged to engage with their
elected members so that we can co-create a borough in which we are all proud to live, work, visit,
learn and invest.

The Council's Strategic Approach to Management is represented in the diagram below
demonstrating how all the component parts align and work together in the delivery of Council
services. it seeks to link the overarching Council objectives to service and individual work plans,
making clear the contribution individuals make towards achieving strategic outcomes. The diagram
also demonstrates the many other areas that make up our accountability, governance and decision
making frameworks supported by two way stakeholder engagement, consultation and feedback.

This helps to ensure that there is a strong focus on the achievement of outcomes at every level of
the Council for the benefit of customers, residents and communities. It also demonstrates the
internal and external engagement and consultation that informs our decision, alongside many
established ongoing governance and assurance frameworks, subject to internal and external
scrutiny.
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The diagram above illustrates the need for connections between all levels. This golden thread is supported by engagement and
improvement processes. The plans listed above are itlustrative of the key plans, rather than an exhaustive list.
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Corporate Plan

The Corporate Plan 2018-2023 is the roadmap for delivering the Community Plan, the overarching
strategy for the borough, which was developed by all the relevant statutory partners in consultation
with local people and communities. It also sets out the strategic direction on a broader scale,
outlining plans to promote the borough on a local, regional, national and global stage to attract
investment to the area. It identifies 30 commitments to contribute to the vision: “a healthy, happy
and connected community, a vibrant and sustainable economy and appealing places for living,
working and learning.”

To achieve these commitments, and deliver on services and activities, Council focus on 4 corporate
themes:

- Committed Council

- Economy

- Community

- Place

A copy of the Corporate Plan can be found at the following link:
https.//www.armaghbanbridgecraigavon.gov.uk/council/corporate-publications/

The Council’s approach to recovery was set out within the Medium Term recovery plan (Link as

follows: https://www.armaghbanbridgecraigavon.qgov.uk/recoveryandgrowth/).

Actions within the Medium-term Recovery Plan are included within business plans in order that
implementation could be mainstreamed, managed and monitored. Recovery activity and the
realisation of further efficiencies were considered as part of the estimates process and built into
budgets. A programme of work to drive and accelerate efficiency savings is established and is being
managed through the Programme Management Office.

Work on the next corporate plan will take place during 2023, with a draft due to be completed by
October 2023 to inform budget setting processes for 2024 and beyond.

Other Key Strategies:

Council has developed and implemented a number of key strategies over the years, including
Recovery and Growth Framework, ‘Connected’ Community Plan (2017-2030), ‘Transform’ Tourism
Strategy (2017-2022), ABC Play Strategy (2018-2026), Agriculture Strategy and Mid-South West
Regional Economic Strategy to improve the lives of everyone in the area.

In February 2020, the Council launched an ambitious framework aimed at helping the local economy
to quickly recover and forge a path to future inclusive growth. The ABC Recovery and Growth
Framework focuses on how Council can create the right social and economic conditions to help the
borough recover from the pandemic and drive sustainable long-term growth for the region.

Link as follows: https://www.armaghbanbridgecraigavon.gov.uk/abc-recovery-and-growth-
framework-sets-out-roadmap-to-rejuvenate-economy/

The Council launched an ambitious agriculture strategy, the first of its kind in any council in Northern
Ireland, aiming to support this vitally important sector within the Borough. Designed to be in line with
the findings of the Independent Strategic Review of the Northern Ireland Agri-Food Sector (ISRAF),
the Green Growth Strategy and to work alongside the Mid South West (MSW) Regional Economic
Strategy amongst others, it is the objective of this strategy to provide practical recommendations to
enable the Council to best support agriculture, agri-food and agri tech, helping to develop long term
viability in the sector. You can find the strategy here: Agriculture Strategy - Armagh City, Banbridge
and Craigavon Borough Council (armaghbanbridgecraigavon.qgov.uk)




The Council continues to progress the new Local Development Plan for the Borough which when
finalised will allow the Borough’s economy to develop further and meet the demands of a growing
population. Stage 1 of this process has been completed with the publication of the Preferred Options
Paper and officers are now working towards stage 2 - the Draft Plan Strategy. The Plan Strategy
will set out a clear vision spatial and growth strategy for the Borough, supported by policies focussed
on securing the orderly and consistent development of land, furthering sustainable development and
improving well-being. The 3rd and final stage of the LPP - the Local Policies Plan - which will deal
with locally specific land use policies and proposals, will be prepared following the adoption of the
Plan Strategy.

All strategies form a part of our day-to-day business and are set out in our Departmental Business
Plans.

The Council has also an extensive capital programme, with capital funds directed at a programme
of work across the Borough designed to improve quality of life and deliver on corporate plan
outcomes. This is underpinned by sound capital finance planning within the context of the rate
setting process. It is also delivering support for rural areas and carrying out a number of
environmental improvement schemes in towns and villages throughout the Borough. This is in
addition to the delivery of a digital connectivity project, to assist with the transformation of public
services and increasing use of online services, EU funding to support peace and reconciliation and
promote social and economic stability and funding to enhance and regenerate town centres. The
Council also provides grant funding every year in financial assistance to various community groups.

Performance & Continuous Improvement:

Performance Requirements:

As a Council, Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council has a statutory duty under the
Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014, to publish improvement objectives each year which
set out the key improvements Council aims to deliver.

The aim of our Performance Improvement Plan is to set out what we will do in the year ahead to
secure continuous improvement in service delivery and bring about improvement against at least
one of the following seven improvement areas as stipulated in the Local Government Act (NI) 2014:

Sustainability

Falrmess
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Essentially, improvement is about making things better, with continuous improvement focusing on
ensuring sustainable, ongoing improvements to the way we as a Council work and deliver our
services.

Council's annual Performance Improvement Plan sits within the Strategic Planning Framework,
which guides the strategic planning process and service delivery arrangements. Whilst the
Performance Improvement Plan focuses specifically on key Performance Improvement Objectives,
Council seeks to bring about improvement in other areas of service delivery. Planned improvements
in our day-to-day business are set out in Departmental Business Plans and in other strategic actions
plans.

Council met its statutory obligations by publishing the 2022/23 Performance Improvement Plan and
2021/22 Annual Assessment Report in September 2021 which were subsequently subject to an
unqualified report following the NIAO Performance Audit.

Council performance related documents mentioned above and the NIAQ Audit and Assessment
Report and Audit Assessment Certificate of Compliance for 2022/23 can be viewed on our website:
https://www.armaghbanbridgecraigavon.gov.uk/council/performance-improvement

Continuous Improvement

As the second largest Council in Northern Ireland, we are now expected by Elected Members, local
residents, businesses and other stakeholders to provide services which are better, more efficient
and effective than they were before Local Government Reform in 2015, as we continue on our
transformation journey,

Our Corporate Plan 2018-2023 outlines our ongoing commitments to provide high quality, efficient
and effective public services, facilities, projects and programmes.

The Council's performance improvement processes drive and ensure that all of our services
continually improve their performance in relation to what they do, how they do it and the cost
involved. This will help us provide the right services in the right way to meet the needs of our
customers and to improve customer experience and satisfaction. Service reviews are an important
part of that journey, and a number of service reviews are ongoing.

In terms of continuous learning and improvement, Council's Performance Management Framework
continues to be implemented and embedded into service delivery, as a key driver for continuous
improvement across all functions, departments and service areas.

The implementation of Council's Peformance Manager software system ensures a consistent ‘One
Council’ approach across the organisation in terms of performance and progress reporting. It
provides a better alignment to the Corporate Plan 2018-2023 and our Corporate Commitments. The
performance software system is now fully embedded in all departments and includes management
reporting of progress against business plans.

Council's Annual Performance Self-Assessment Report provides information on Council's
performance on the previous year, gives detail on issues identified through monitoring and review,
as well as reference to any planned/implemented improvements.

The 2021-22 Report is available on Council’s website: www.armaghbanbridgecraigavon.gov.uk

Risk:

Risk Management is about managing threats and opportunities so that the Council is in a stronger
position to deliver its objectives and is an essential business tool that encourages innovation and
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enterprise, not risk adversity. Risk Management includes identifying and assessing risks and then
responding to them to ensure effective controls are in place. Failure to manage risk effectively may
result in financial losses, disruption to services, bad publicity or claims for compensation.

All organisations face risk or obstacles to achieving their objectives. In order for Armagh City,
Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council to deliver its vision of serving and leading the people of
the Borough it is vitally important to:

Understand the nature of the risks we face

Be aware of the extent of these risks

Identify the level of risk that we are willing to accept
Assess our ability to control or reduce the risk
Implement corrective actions

Risk management is explicitly linked to the business planning process to ensure it is embedded
across the Council. The Council has an agreed Risk Management Policy which was reviewed during
2021-22 with corporate, departmental and project risk registers developed and reported to the
Performance and Audit committee quarterly in line with the agreed policy. As with the performance
management, risk management is also embedded and supported with a risk management software
system, ensuring a one council approach.

An effective risk management process will:
e Improve service delivery
Support business planning
Improve decision making
Improve performance and promote continuous improvement
Enhance communication between Departments
Improve accountability and reassure stakeholders

The management of risk within the organisation and any significant issues arising during the year
and/or areas of concern are also referenced in the Annual Governance Statement.

Annual Governance Statement:

The Council prepares a separate Annual Governance Statement, and this accompanies the financial
statements. Whilst the Annual Governance Statement can be reviewed in detail it is important to
reiterate that the effectiveness of the Council's internal controls is examined in detail through the
work of Internal Audit. An annual Internal Audit Plan is approved by Council based on a needs and
risk assessment process that focuses resources on higher risk areas and meets the professional
standards required by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. Based on evidence from planned
audits and any special investigations, Internal Audit reports to the Performance & Audit Committee
on any major weaknesses that have been identified in the internal controls examined and highlights
where important improvements are considered necessary. The Annual Governance Statement is
included within these Accounts (Page 15).

Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to ratepayers how the
funding available to the Council (i.e. government grants, domestic and business rates) for the year
has been used in providing services in comparison with those resources ‘consumed or earned by
councils in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. The Expenditure and Funding
Analysis also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the
Council’s directorates. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting
practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
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During the annual Estimates Process each year the Council has to ensure that it has adequate
resources to deliver the services expected by the local community, both business and non-business
alike. To this end in 2022/23 the Council projected a requirement of net funding in the amount of
£79.0m of which £71.7m was to be raised by way of Rates Income along with total projected Central
Government grant funding of approximately £6.7m (i.e. Rates Support Grant, Transferred Functions
Grants and De-Rating Grant) and a balance applied of £0.6m.

In February 2022 the Council approved net budgets at the time as follows:

Community & Growth - £13.7m
Deputy CEO & CEO: - £7.9m
Neighbourhood Services: - £41.4m
Strategy & Performance: - £3.3m

The Council also budgeted for various capital projects across Council and set aside approximately
£12.7m capital financing for this. Based on these figures, the Council set the District Rate and
combined with the Central Government Regional rate, are used to calculate the Borough Rates bills.
Details of the range of services provided from the rate setting process are detailed below:
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Financial Performance:

For the year ended 31 March 2023, there was an increase in the Council’s total Usable Reserves
from £47.9m to £53.7m. The Council's approved net budgets of £79.0m was supplemented by
£1.4m in year finalisation payment of district rates, additional one-off grant funding of £3.7m relating
to Small Settlements Capital Grant and Sale of Assets of £2.1m. The total Net Operating
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Expenditure reported in the CIES is £92.0m (this includes amounts for depreciation, impairments
and other non-budget accountancy adjustments).

» Capital expenditure during the year amounted to £5.9m. This included expenditure on a
number of projects and initiatives including expenditure on Play Parks across the Borough
(£2m), Vehicles & Equipment (£2.4m), and Council Buildings and land (£1.5m),

The Council's financial accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out on pages 44 — 108
and consist of:

» The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — the Council's main revenue
account covering income and expenditure on all services.

* The Movement in Reserves Statement — this shows the movement in and the accumulated
balances of reserves held by the Council at the year end. These are categorised as either
‘Usable’ (i.e. consideration can be given regarding utilising these amounts) or ‘Unusable’ (i.e.
resources for which a decision has already been made by Council regarding how these are
to be used e.g. the creation of specific reserves or funding towards one-off projects).

* The Balance Sheet ~ which sets out the Council’s assets and liabilities at the year end.

» The Cash Flow Statement — this includes information regarding inflows and outflows of cash
arising from transactions for both revenue and capital.

» Notes to the Accounts.

During 2022/23 the gross expenditure incurred by Council on Continuing Operations amounts to
approximately £112.7m (2021/22 £106.5m). This was supplemented by income from various
sources including service users and grants of £23.4m (2021/22 £25.8m) resulting in net expenditure
on cost of services of £89.3m (2021/22 £80.7). Service expenditure and income is summarised in
the following table:

Service Expenditure Gross Gross Income Net Expenditure
Expenditure
£'000 £'000 £000
Community & Growth 26,867 (10,160) 16,707
Deputy CEO and CEQ | 9,540 (734) 8,806
Neighbourhood Services 69,528 (11,156) 58,372
Strategy & Performance 4,253 (374) 3,879
Other Services 2,489 | (992) 1,497
Continuing Operations 112,677 (23,4186) 89,261

Material assets purchased during the year included expenditure of approximately £2.4m on vehicles
and equipment.

The Council has utilised some of the earmarked reserves in year, received earmarked Capital grants
and received Capital Receipts from the Sale of assets resulting in a net upward movement of £5.2m
on these reserves. In relation to the overall reserves there was an increase in year of £0.6m to the
General Fund (from the opening balance position) and this resulted in Total Usable Reserves
increasing by £5.8m over the course of the year.

Notes 2a and 2b include a breakdown of expenditure by Directorate across the Council as part of

the new requirements introduced in 2017/18 regarding Telling the Story and comparative figures are
included in an effort to provide as much information as possible to readers of the accounts.
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The Council is required to ensure that property assets are revalued on a regular basis. This process
is undertaken annually for land and buildings. Following the 2022/23 revaluation exercise and taking
into consideration in year expenditure on capital additions, there was an upward movement of £8.1m,
increasing from £250.3m to £258.4m, on the overall Net Book Value of fixed assets (excludes Assets
Held for Sale). The main area of note was the increase due to the revaluation exercise of £7.6m
and the additions of £5.9m. Information on Long Term Assets is included in Note 11.

The Council's net pension liability decreased by £77.3m from a liability of £75.1m to create an asset
of £2.2m and this is largely due to changes in financial assumptions in interest rates and discount
factors. Whilst the Council is obligated to include this asset within its accounts there is no
requirement for the Council to create this asset immediately or to make a one-off payment or access
this asset in the Reserves. There is therefore no perceived risk to the financial standing of the
Council resulting from this asset. Information regarding pensions is included in Note 21.

There was no material change in the Council’s statutory functions during the year and there were no
significant changes in accounting policies during the year.

The Council was able to continue to meet its financial liabilities through the use of reserves, and
internal and external borrowing. The Council also continued to service existing debt and at the end
of 2022/23 the total borrowing as at 31 March 2023 stood at £56.8m which was a decrease of £8.2m
on the 2021/22 closing position. This was due to a reduction in short-term borrowing and cashflow
requirement at year end.

Forward Planning

There continues to be a number of economic factors and funding challenges affecting local councils
including the impact of external factors such as the war in Ukraine, the cost of living crisis and its
subsequent impact on industrial relations and the long-term impact of the Covid 19 pandemic, which
in turn has created challenges for the Council on income generation.  The continued uncertainty
within global financial markets has been further compounded by high inflation and ever increasing
interest rates which in turn has influenced the level and cost of pay settlements. There also has been
a reduction in grants from central government and the absence of a local Executive has reduced the
ability to Council to lobby for change and additional funding.

Within this challenging environment, the Council undertook a comprehensive review of expenditure
and pressures to identify opportunities for efficiencies and transformation moving forward and these
fed into the 2023/24 budget setting process. The Council is therefore content that the budgets for
the current financial year are robust. The intensive analysis that played an important part in the
2023/24 budget setting process has been further supported and enhanced through the development
of an updated Medium Term Financial Plan which sets out a robust financial framework for proposed
spending and investment over the next three financial years to support the delivery of agreed
corporate objectives.

The Medium Term Financial Plan includes for corporate and unavoidable pressures as well as
ensuring the protection of front-line services and in this regard, it is forecasting district rate increases
above the current levels of inflation. Therefore, in order to ensure that the ambitious corporate
programme is affordable, the proposed investment and enhanced service delivery will be supported
by various measures including efficiencies, transformation and service review, securing value for
money through procurement and effective treasury management and financial management. The
Council has in place a full transformation programme, which is supported by a Programme
Management Office, with Senior Responsible Officers identified amongst senior management for all
significant projects.
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The aim of the Transformation Programme is to ensure continuous improvement in service delivery
across the organisation, prioritising those front-line areas of highest spend and with direct impact
upon communities. Providing value for money for people, communities and businesses in the
Borough remains at the core of the Council's transformation agenda.

Business Continuity

The Council has built up a strong and healthy reserves balance which has enabled it to cope with
the immediate financial pressures posed by goods and pay inflation and some of the funding
challenges presented by the regional budget settlement for Northern Ireland. These challenges
are, however, likely to remain and for some time, together with any potential loss of income due to
demand reduction as a result of the cost of living crisis. Any such reductions in funding are outside
the control of Council but this will be factored into considerations during the annual Estimates
process.

During the 2022/23 financial year, the Council agreed a significant efficiency programme and
continued to make budget reductions and exercise robust budgetary control in order to protect
services and to ensure the financial stability of the organisation. The Council’s risk management,
business planning and budgetary processes have been adapted as necessary to ensure that the on-
going issues related to financial risks are captured and managed.

The 2023/24 budgets will be continually kept under review on a monthly basis throughout the year
to determine the robustness of original projections and assumptions and whether reductions and/or
realignment of budgets will be required to ensure there will be a balanced budget at the year-end.
- Budgetary control and financial management in the organisation has been supplemented by the work
of the Estimates and Efficiency Working Group to help identify further opportunities to generate
efficiencies and savings. This group will also play a pivotal role in the 2024/25 Estimates Process
in terms of identifying areas where savings can be applied and opportunities to maximise income.
Outputs from the Working Group will continue to inform medium term financial planning.

The Council recognises the critical importance of identifying and managing the impact of external
pressures whilst protecting the organisation’s financial integrity and stability. In the current operating
environment these include significant inflationary pressures in relation to goods, services and wages,
as well as impact of a tight regional budget settlement and its impact on central government funding
to local government. Therefore, there will be a continual process of review, reporting and revisions
to business plans, business continuity plans, budgets and financial plans as the Council moves
forward through this volatile period. Council has also made successful bids for other funding
opportunities, inciuding Levelling Up Funds, Shared Island funding and significant Growth Deal
Funding. The Council has a plan in place is maximise its potential to avail of such external funding
opportunities into the future.

Basis of preparation for Annual Audited Accounts 2022/23

The Council’s annual accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and are intended to present to
readers a true and fair view of financial activity during the 2022/23 financial year. The accounting
convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. The Statement of
Accounts has been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis.

The concept of materiality recognises that absolute accuracy in financial statements is rarely
possible. Therefore, the external audit is designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute
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assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement or irregularity, A
matter is material if its omission or misstatement would reasonably infiluence the decisions of
the users of the financial statements.

There are also materiality thresholds to be adhered to and officers are obliged to make
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and have endeavoured to ensure
that as much information as possible has been presented to make the accounts as user
friendly as possible within these limitations.

The remainder of this Report provides a detailed analysis of the Annual Audited Accounts 2022/23
for Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council.
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Statement of the Council’s and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities for the
Statement of Accounts

The Council’s Responsibilities

Under Section 1 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 a council shall
make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs. A council shall
designate an officer of the council as its Chief Financial Officer and these arrangements shall
be carried out under the supervision of its Chief Financial Officer.

Under Regulation 7 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern
Ireland) 2015 the Council, or a Committee, is required by resolution, to approve the
accounts.

These accounts were approved by resolution of the Performance & Audit Committee on 21st
September 2023.
The Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities

Under Regulation 8 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern
Ireland) 2015, the Chief Financial Cfficer is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s
Statement of Accounts in the form directed by the Department for Communities.

The accounts must give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows
for the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial Officer is required to:

. observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department for Communities including
compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom

. follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable accounting
policies on a consistent basis, and

° make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.
The Chief Financial Officer is also required to:
° keep proper accounting records that are up-to-date, and

. take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
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Annual Governance Statement 2022-23
Scope of Responsibility

Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money
is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.
The Council also has a duty under Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014, Part 12:
Performance Improvement to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement having
regard to strategic effectiveness, service quality, service availability, fairness, sustainability,
efficiency and innovation.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its function,
which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

The Council has prepared an Annual Governance Statement which is consistent with the
principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government. This statement explains how the Council meets the requirements of Regulation
4 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 in
relation to the publication of an Annual Governance Statement.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values by
which the Council is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to,
engages with and leads the community. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of
its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of
appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage
risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and
objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they
be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon
Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of approval of the
financial statements.

The Governance Framework

This section describes the key foundations of the Council's governance arrangements. A
Council Code of Governance is in place and is based on the seven principles set out in the
CIPFA/Solace ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’. The key elements of the
systems and processes that comprise the Council's governance arrangements are
summarised below:;

Identifying and communicating the Council’s vision of its purpose and intended
outcomes for citizens and service users.

The ‘Strategic Management Approach’ sets out the various components of the planning
framework bringing together specific priorities, aims and ambitions for the Borough. It seeks to
link the overarching Council objectives to service and individual work plans, making clear the
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contribution individuals make towards achieving strategic outcomes. It provides a mechanism
to establish and implement an integrated way of communicating and implementing objectives
throughout Council so that all plans are clear and ‘joined up’, known as the ‘golden thread’.
Connecting the ‘golden thread’ from the Community Plan and Corporate Plan through
departmental, service and individual plans show how the plans all fit together. This helps to
ensure that there is a strong focus on the achievement of outcomes at every level of the
Council for the benefit of customers, residents and communities. The ‘golden thread’ is
demonstrated in Diagram 1.

Diagram 1

ARMAGH CITY, BANBRIDGE & CRAIGAVON BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT APPROACH

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT
Regional And National Strategies & Partnerships

Immediate influencers - Political Stability & Direction | Health of the Economy | Labour Market - skills, capacity & availabikity
-~ BOROUGH COMMUNITY PLAN .

COURCIE MEDIUM TERM
DEVELDP CORPORATE PLAN FINANCIAL PLAN

|

+ Spatial outworking of . Defines corporate + Financial sustainability
the Cotporate Plan objectives, priarities « Exploring Funding
« Yisicn for the Borough and values Oppostunities
+ Strategy B Framework
fas Delivesy

COUNCIL'S OTHER STRATEGIES & PLANS
E.g. Growih Climate, Agri, People & Culture, Transformation,
Place Plans, Capital Plan, Performidnce Improvement Plan
Operationalisation Structure
Mans, Programmes, Becisions & Implementation

I

ANNUAL PROGRAMME COMMITTEE &
BUSINESS PLANS { PROJECT COUNCIL AGENDAS
(& business unit plans/other MANAGEMENT PLANS

. Defines service » Operationalising + Service committee
delivery activities and Cross-Cutting Strategy meetings
performance measures Action Plans including - Full Council meetings
in line with corporate transformation - Member f Officer Working
objectives programmes & project Groups
plans and other funded « Decision Making &
programmes &

YNILYCHIY ANY ONIMOLINOW SWD '8 IDNVWAOIYId

ASSURANCE & ACCOUNTABILITY FRAMEWORKS

- Council Financial Regulations « Range of Governance Policies & Procedures
» Procurement Policy « Internal Audit
« Performance & Quality Management « MIAD & Other External Audits
framewotk . Assurance Statements & Framework
« information Management « Cade of Governance
« Risk Management . Cades of Conduct
+ Health & Safety Arrangements « Personal Development Conversation
= Safeguarding Procedures « Equality Scheme

SHIATOHANVLS TYNYILXT B TYNIILINI OL ROLLYIINNWHNOD

|

EXTERNAL STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION, CUSTOMER FEEDBACK
INTERNAL ORGANISATIONAL ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION (MEMBERS & TRADE UNIONS & STAFF)

The diagrom above illustrates the need for connections between all levels. This golden threed is supported by engagement and
improvement processes. The plans listed abave are illustrative of the key plans, rather than on exhoustive list
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The Borough Community Plan gives us the WHY of what we are doing, providing a holistic
view of the needs and aspirations of our Borough and articulating them in 9 long term
outcomes. The Council's Corporate Plan explains WHAT we as the Council are doing to
contribute to these outcomes as well as outlining any other key objectives for us as an
organisation. And finally, departmental business plans detail the HOW.

The existing Corporate Plan 2018-2023 is aligned to the Community Plan. It identifies four
main themes on which Council will deliver; Committed Council, Economy, Community and .
Place.

The Council has a statutory duty to put arrangements in place for continuous improvement.
Each year Council is required to develop a Performance Improvement Plan (PIP). The PIP
identifies objectives for the year ahead, and Council’s actions to meet these objectives. It is
aligned to the Community Plan outcomes and Corporate Plan objectives and is subject to and
informed by public consultation. In June 2022 Council published its PIP for the 2022-23 year.
A Mid-Year Performance Progress Report for 2022-23 was completed in December 2022. An
annual Self-Assessment Report for 2022-23 will be published by 30 September 2023 in line
with regulatory requirements.

Council has commenced work on a new Local Development Plan (LDP) for the Borough. In
March 2018 the Council published its Preferred Options Paper. It is currently preparing the
draft Plan Strategy which is the second stage of the Plan. Public consultation on the draft Plan
Strategy is expected to commence in the 2023-24 year.

The Council's Medium Term Financial Pian (MTFP) for 2024-2029 approved in February 2023
forms the financial framework from which the Council develops its business plans with
estimates approved by Council in February each year.

Reviewing Council’s vision and its implications for the governance arrangements

The Community Plan is led by a Community Planning Strategic Partnership made up of senior
representatives from our statutory partners, elected members and representatives from the
community and business sectors. There are formal processes in place to monitor the progress
of the plan and ensure effective governance arrangements are in place for the successful
implementation of the plan. The Community Planning Strategic Partnership published its
second Statement of Progress in November 2021. The Partnership have also piloted the first
Place Plan for the Borough in Armagh. The Plan which included extensive engagement takes
a wholistic view of the City and recommends actions to help the place thrive.

The corporate themes and commitments within the Corporate Plan are cascaded through the
Departmental Business Plans. A new Corporate Plan for Council is currently being drafted and
is expected to be published by November 2023.

The Council Treasury Management Strategy for 2022-23 was approved by full Council in
February 2022 and is monitored via financial reports to the Governance, Resources and
Strategy Committee twice yearly.

A Capital Strategy was also approved at the February 2023 Governance, Resources and
Strategy Committee as part of the 2023-24 Estimate process.

The progress on the development of the Local Development Plan is reported through the
Planning Committee.
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The Corporate Risk Register identifies the main risks associated with the achievement of the
Council’'s commitments/objectives and cross referenced within departmental business plans.
The Executive Management Team and the Performance & Audit Committee review the
Corporate Risk Register quarterly.

Measuring the quality of services for users ensuring they are delivered in accordance
with Council’s objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best use of resources.

The performance improvement regime requires Counci! to put arrangements in place to secure
continuous improvement to deliver outcomes for citizens/residents. The Council’s Performance
Management Framework was approved by Council in November 2019,

Council's Customer Care Strategy provides direction and a framework on the Council's
approach to Customer Care with external customers such as residents, businesses, visitors,
public sector partners and other stakeholders as well as internally between departments and
services. The Customer Care Project Team take the lead in delivering the strategy and
overseeing the implementation of an annual Customer Care Action Plan.

The 2022-23 Customer Care Action Plan was approved by the GRS Committee in June 2022
and the Committee received the mid-year progress report on the Action Plan in November
2022. A review of the Strategy aligned to the new Corporate Plan will take place in 2023-24.

The Council strives to continue to improve its methods for obtaining customer feedback and
increase the numbers of service areas with baseline satisfaction levels. Service standards
have also been developed across Departments with quarterly reports to the Senior Leadership
Team. Work is progressing in the development of a Quality Management System for Council.

Council has an approved Corporate Complaint's Policy and procedure to deal with
unsatisfactory customer/service user feedback.

The Council is subject to audit by the Local Government Auditor, within the Northern lreland
Audit Office (NIAQ). The scope of the NIAO work covers not only the audit of the Council's
Financial Statements, but also aspects of corporate governance, arrangements to secure the
economic, efficient and effective use of resources and an audit and assessment of the
Council's Performance Improvement duties. The Local Government Auditor makes an annual
report on the results of both the financial audit and separately the performance assessment
audit, which are published on the Council's website.

Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive, non-
executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation arrangements and
protocols for effective communication.

The Committee structure detailed below, is designed to reflect the Council’s Vision and
Strategic Priorities as set out in the Corporate Plan. A key element of the structure is to ensure
a ‘One Council’ approach by enabling cross Directorate working.

COUNCIL
Governance, Performance Planning & Economic
Resources & & Audit Regulatory | Development
Strategy Services B

Regeneration
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Each Committee has a defined Terms of Reference, documenting its roles and responsibilities.

The minutes and associated reports for all Council and Committee Meetings are uploaded to
the Council’'s website with the exception of confidential minutes and reports. Full Council
meetings are audio recorded and uploaded to the Council website. These actions ensure that
the Council is communicating with the public in an open and transparent manner.

The Constitution details the rules and procedures being followed by the Council and its
Committees when transacting business, primarily in accordance with the Local Government
(NI} Act 2014 and subsequent Standing Orders. The Council is conscious of the need to keep
the Constitution up to date and both the Constitution and Standing Orders were reviewed in
January 2021.

The Council is committed to setting and securing the highest standards in decision making and
the Scheme of Delegation provides the framework for the powers delegated to Committees of
Council and to Senior Managers within the Council. Decisions made by officers under the
scheme are recorded and presented on a monthly basis to full Council for information. The
Scheme of Delegation was revised in June 2022.

Council's Executive Management Team (EMT) meet regularly at least monthly to discuss
issues commensurate to the aims, objectives and priorities of Council. Heads of Department
(HoD) alsc meet monthly and HoD and EMT meet jointly once per month.

Internal communication systems include Council intranet, websites, staff memos, all user
emails, social media, written correspondence, working group minutes and a combination of
formal and informal team meetings. Council has a Senior Communications and Branding
Manager to oversee the further development of internal and external communications.

Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the standards
of behaviour for members and staff.

Codes of Conduct are in place for both staff and Elected Members and define the high ethical
values and standards of behaviour expected, to make sure that public business is conducted
with fairness and integrity. Both the Cade of Conduct for Council Members and the Code of
Conduct for staff are published on the Council's intranet and website. A revised Code of
Conduct for Local Government staff was adopted in April 2021.

Councillors have received training in respect of the statutory Code of Conduct. A Register of
Members Interests is maintained and updated on an annual basis, or as and when required.
Confiict of interests is also a standing agenda item at each Committee and Council meeting.

The Council has a wide range of policies and procedures, which are subject to on-going review
which reference the standards of behaviour expected from all employees.

Reviewing the effectiveness of Councils’ decision-making framework, including
delegation arrangements, decision making in partnerships and robustness of data
quality

The Constitution governs how the Council operates, how decisions are made and the
procedures followed to ensure efficiency, transparency and accountability to local people. The
Constitution is accessible on the Council’s website. The Council's Scheme of Delegation
provides the framework and guidance for the powers delegated to Committees of Council and
to Senior Managers.
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The Council's Financial Regulations set out the overarching financial responsibilities of the
Council and its staff and provides the framework within which the Council's financial affairs are
managed. A review of the Financial Regulations was completed in June 2022. A review of
the Procurement Handbook was also completed in March 2022,

Good data quality is required by the Council to plan, make its key decisions, and deploy its
resources for smooth operational performance. Council continues to endeavour to ensure data
is accurate, valid, reliable, timely, relevant and complete.

Council’s Internal Legal Team continuously review the effectiveness of the Council's decision
making framework, including delegation arrangements and decision making.

The Council is committed to working alongside partners and local communities in order to
deliver excellent services and has established and facilitated a Community Planning Strategic
Partnership for the Borough. A Borough Community Engagement Strategy was published in
June 20189 which sets out the Community Planning partners’ aspirations, along with the steps
they will take together to make sure that people can be more involved in the decisions that
affect their lives.

Reviewing the effectiveness of the framework for identifying and managing risks and
demonstrating clear accountability

The Council has a Risk Management Policy in place which was last reviewed and updated in
September 2021. The Policy forms part of Council’s internal control and corporate governance
framework. The Corporate Risk Register is reviewed by the Executive Management Team and
presented to the Performance & Audit Committee quarterly. Risk Registers are in place for
each Department and also for significant projects. As outlined in the Risk Management Policy,
Departmental Risk Registers for one Directorate are presented on a rolling basis to the
Performance & Audit Committee. A comprehensive risk management software system is used
to manage identified risks across all Departments and has assisted in the further embedding
of risk management across Council.

Risk Management is embedded across all the activities of Council, however it is important to
note that Risk Management is a continuous evolving process which is monitored closely by the
Strategy and Performance Department with additional oversight from the Internal Audit
Manager.

Ensuring effective counter-fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are developed and
maintained

Council have a Fraud Policy (including a fraud response plan) in place from December 2019.
A review of the Fraud Policy is due to be completed in 2023. Fraud and whistleblowing
investigations are reported quarterly to the Performance & Audit Committee as a standing
agenda item. Any suspected or attempted fraudulent activities are investigated and reported
to the NIAO and other appropriate authorities.

The risk of fraud is identified and managed as part of the risk management process and any
fraud risk are captured in Departmental Risk Registers if deemed appropriate. The Council
prepares an Annual Fraud Report which summarises the work the Council undertakes during
the year to prevent, detect and investigate fraud and corruption. The risk of fraud is also
considered during audit assignments when reviewing the control environment.

An e-learning fraud module for all Council employees is in place. The Internal Audit Plan for
2023-24 includes provision for further targeted fraud awareness sessions across Council.
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Ensuring effective management of change and transformation

In October 2020, Council initiated a review of its organisational structure as part of the Financial
Review and Transformation Project to enable new strategic thinking and a shared vision for
the future of the Council as a high performing organisation. A new organisationat structure
was approved and implemented in July 2021. The Senior Leadership Team and Council
remain committed to ongoing harmonisation and transformation of Council services. Specific
transformation and development funds are identified within estimates. Significant programme
of work in respect of Transformation and Efficiency Programmes has taken place during 2022-
23 and is ongoing. '

An Estimates and Efficiency Working Group and a Member Advisory Group are in place to
lead the transformation agenda across Council. In 2022-23 Council developed a detailed
Efficiency Programme to mitigate against increasing costs and financial pressures. Efficiency
and Transformation Programmes identified options for opportunities to save costs, reduce
budgets and review service delivery methods.

A number of service reviews have been completed and others are in progress with ongoing
implementation plans e.g. The Indoor Leisure Transformation Project, Planning, Building
Control, Health and Recreation and Registration Services. In addition, an independent review
of the Environmental Services Department was undertaken and arising from this review, a
Transformation agenda and action plan is being progressed. Service review and
transformation progress reports are brought to EMT and the relevant service
committee/Project Board.

The Programme Management Office (“PMO”) was established to support Officers across
Council in all aspects of project delivery & facilitate the flow of information to help with effective
decision making across the organisation. A Transformation Oversight Board was established
in January 2023 and meet monthly to bring a programme and project management discipline
to all transformation programmes.

The Council recognises that Climate Change represents a significant challenge for the future
and a Climate Emergency Working Group has been established. One of the key objectives
for 2023-24 is to develop a Net Zero Carbon Strategy for the Borough. A range of projects
and programmes are underway across Council Departments aimed at carbon reduction,
sustainability and energy management.

Ensuring Council’s financial management arrangements conform with the governance
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local
Government (2010) and, where they do not, explain why and how they deliver the same
impact.

Council has designated the Chief Executive as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO). The CIPFA
Statement on The Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (the Statement) sets
out five principles that define the core activities and behaviours that belong to the role of the
Chief Financial Officer in public service organisations and the organisational arrangements
needed to support them.

Principle 5 requires the CFO to be professionally qualified and be a member of an accountancy
body. Local Regulations in Northern Ireland do not require the CFO to be a professionally
qualified accountant nor for the role to be separated from that of the Chief Executive. The
Council is satisfied that the Chief Executive is supported by a number of fully qualified and
experienced staff within the Council who are members of various bodies within the
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Consultative Committee of Accountancy Bodies (CCAB) and as such ensure the decisions
made by the CFO are based on sound technical knowledge and understanding.

Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and
procedures, and that expenditure is lawful.

Strategic Diréctors and Heads of Department along with Senior Managers and staff are
responsible for ensuring compliance with relevant laws, regulations, internal policies and
procedures. The six monthly assurance statements provided to the Chief Executive and
Performance & Audit Committee provide an opportunity to reflect on this point. All employees
and Elected Members are required to act in compliance with their respective Codes of Conduct
while carrying out their duties and to declare any conflicts of interests. All committee reports
are obliged to highlight any financial implications.

Council’s Internal Audit function has a specific role in providing independent assurance to
Management and the Elected Members on the internal control, risk management and
governance arrangements of Council. Council also has access to advice from a range of
sources, including internal senior corporate managers in areas such as Legal Services,
Corporate H&S, Information Governance, and Procurement, etc.

Ensuring Council’s assurance arrangements conform with the governance -
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit (2010)
and, where they do not, explain why and how they deliver the same impact.

The role referred to by CIPFA as the Head of Internal Audit has an important role in delivering
the organisation’s strategic aims by championing best practice in governance, objectively
assessing the adequacy of governance and management of existing risks, commenting on
responses to emerging risks and proposed developments; and giving an objective and
evidence-based opinion on all aspects of governance, risk management and internal control.

The Internal Audit Manager fulfils the role of the ‘Chief Audit Executive/ Head of Internal Audit’
in accordance with the governance requirements of the CIPFA statement. The Internal Audit
Section operates in compliance with the Public Sector Internai Audit Standards, which came
into effect from April 2023.

Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in CIPFA’s Audit
Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities

The Performance & Audit Committee which meets quarterly, comprises of seven Members of
Council and two Independent Members. The Performance & Audit Committee operates in
compliance with the CIPFA Audit Committee best practice guidance including an annuat review
of its effectiveness and performance which was deemed as effective during 2022-23. Included
within the Annual Performance & Audit Committee report is an action plan to support the further
development of this key Committee. Training was provided to the Performance & Audit
Committee Members in March 2020 and further training is planned for the 2023-24 year
following the new Council Term.

The core functions of the Performance & Audit Committee are summarised in a Terms of
Reference, which describe the arrangements in place to enable it to operate independently,
robustly and effectively.

Whistleblowing and other processes for receiving and investigating complaints from
the public
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The Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, probity and
accountability. It expects its employees who have serious concerns about anything improper
that is happening within the Council, to come forward and raise those concerns.

A new Raising Concern Policy replacing the former Whistleblowing Policy was approved in
February 2022 and is available on the Council website and intranet. This Policy takes into
consideration the best practice as detailed in the “NIAO Raising Concerns” publication.

As part of the Council's Customer Care Strategy, the Council is committed to providing
excellent services to the residents, businesses and visitors of the Borough. A Corporate
Customer Complaints Policy is in place and is available on the Council website. The aim of
the Policy is to ensure all corporate complaints are dealt with in a fair and consistent manner.
The Council's Equality Scheme contains a process for dealing with any equality related
complaints.

Identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in relation to their
strategic roles, supported by appropriate training

Council continued to deliver Elected Members’ capacity building training throughout the 2022-
23 year as part of Elected Member Development Plan. Council has achieved the highest level
of Member Charter with Charter Plus being retained in September 2022. During the year two
elected Members were awarded ILM level 7 qualifications and others are working towards this.

The Council's Learning and Development Policy sets out the Council's commitment to the
development and training of employees. A corporate training plan for both staff and elected
Members is developed annually. A leadership programme for all Tier 4 managers was
effectively rolled out during the 2022-23 year.

The draft People Strategy and draft Organisational Development Plan wil! be further developed
during 2023-24. During 2022-23 Council piloted the new employee appraisal system and this
has been operational for all Departments from April 2023.

Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the community and
other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open consultation

Council utilises various media by which to deliver internal and external communications, such
as the Council websites, publications, brochures, leaflets, social media and media
advertisements and broadcasts. The Council continues to explore ways to digitalize services
and use online technology and social media to enhance communication with residents,
customers, businesses and potential visitors to the Borough.

Council and its services have continued to respond with agility and innovation in using virtual
methods and digital channels in 2022-23 following its response to the Covid Pandemic. The
Communications and Branding Team will further develop Council communications strategies
in 2023-24.

All Council and committee meeting minutes are available on the Council website, with audio
recordings of full Council meetings available.

The Council’'s Equality Scheme is a statement of the Council’'s commitment to the promotion
of equality of opportunity and good relations and also outlines how Council meets its
obligations under Section 75 of the NI Act 1998. An Equality Action Plan for the period 2020-
2023 accompanies the Scheme. In compliance with section 49A of the Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 the Council has in place a Disability Action Plan for the period 2020-
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2023. Council publications can be requested in a number of different formats including audio,
braille and large print.

The Council is committed to openness and transparency and empowering communities to
contribute to decisions. A Borough Community Engagement Strategy was developed and
published in June 2019 with the Community Planning Strategic Partnership. A Community and
Voluntary Sector Panel was established in June 2018 as part of the Community Planning
partnership. In May 2022, the Panel released an action plan around a number of key themes
linked to the Borough’s Corporate Plan.

Council consults with various bodies in relation to important strategic or policy development
matters and a public Consultation Policy is in place along with detailed internal guidance and
training. Separate formal consultation mechanisms are in place for statutory consultations
specifically in relation to the Planning process including the Statement of Community
Involvement.

The Communications and Branding Department plan to undertake a Communications and
Engagement Public Consultation in 2023/24. The consultation will allow for benchmarking bi-
annually.

Enhancing the accountability for service delivery and effectiveness of other public
service providers

Council delivers a range of services, both directly and indirectly to the residents/citizens of
Council. The Council has a range of mechanisms and plans in place for delivering effective
services which extend to the Community Plan, Corporate Plan, Business Plans, Strategies,
Action Plans and the Performance Management Framework.

Council works with a range of partners to develop and implement the Community Plan through
the Community Planning Strategic Partnership and is progressing the Local Development Plan
at the second stage in conjunction with relevant stakeholders.

There are effective governance and monitoring arrangements for service delivery and
accountability identified within the Performance Management Framework for Council. In
addition, a range of public service providers attend Council Committees on a regular basis to
present their plans/strategies and annual reports providing opportunity for Elected Member
engagement on behalf of communities and local businesses. Council actively responds to a
large number of other public sector consultations in relation to matters that affect services and
people in the Borough.

Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships and other joint
working as identified by the Audit Commission’s report on the governance of
partnerships, and reflecting these in Council’'s overall governance arrangements.

The Council continuously strives to have the highest standards of governance arrangements
in place and endeavours to ensure that its partners also have high standards of governance
arrangements in place. The Council reviews its governance arrangements regularly to take
account of best practice guidance. A detailed review of Council’s governance arrangements
was undertaken in the 2022-23 year by the Local Government Association and the Centre for
Governance and Scrutiny. An action plan from this Governance Review highlighting short term
and long term improvements was approved at the November 2022 Governance, Resources
and Strategy Committee.

A collaboration between Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council, Fermanagh
and Omagh District Council and Mid Ulster District Council; Mid South West (MSW) is
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responsible for delivering a Regional Economic Strategy that focuses on boosting productivity,
driving business growth, promoting sectoral strengths, and creating more better paid jobs
across the region via Growth Deals. A Regional Governance Steering Group is in place and
regular update reports are brought to the Economic Development and Regeneration
Committee.

Review of Effectiveness

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness
of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of
effectiveness is informed by an annual review of governance, the work of the executive
managers within the Council who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of
the governance environment, Internal Audit's annual report, and also by comments made by
the external auditors.

The following reports provide information in support of the Governance framework:

» Strategic Director and Head of Department 6 monthly assurance statements
¢ Internal Audit Reports

¢ Health and Safety Reports

¢ Finance and Budget Reports

¢ Risk Management Reports

¢ Performance Reporting

e External Reviews including NIAO

¢ IS0 and other external accreditations

The following process has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the
governance framework:

1. The Authority

The Council's Standing Orders and Financial Regulations provide the framework for its
decision making processes and sets out the detailed procedures and codes of conduct by
which Members and Officers operate to achieve Council objectives. Council meets once a
month on a formal basis to set the strategic direction and monitor the service delivery of the
Council. The Council has five committees that meet monthly and a Performance & Audit
Committee which meets quarterly.

The Group Party Leaders Forum seeks to provide an informal sounding board on major
strategic issues in advance of submission to Committee/Council, thereby facilitating and
streamlining the conduct of Council business.

2. The Executive

The Executive Management Team which includes the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief
Executive, Strategic Directors and the Head of Finance, ICT & Procurement meet at least
monthly and monitor the strategic direction and good governance across the Council. Strategic
Directors and Heads of Department completed six monthly Assurance Statements during
2022-23 and in signing, opinions were informed over the following:

Corporate, Departmental and relevant Project Risk Registers
Operational policies and procedures

Internal Audit reports

Administrative procedures (including segregation of duties)
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+ Management Supervision
» Scheme of delegation and accountability.

3. Performance & Audit Committee

The Council has a Performance & Audit Committee which reports to full Council. The
Committee provides an independent assurance on the adequacy of the Council's risk
management framework and associated control environment. It also provides an independent
scrutiny of the Council’s financial and non-financial performance and oversees the financial
reporting process. The terms of reference (Audit Committee Charter) which sets out the
purpose and roles and responsibilities was updated in December 2019.

The Performance & Audit Committee met quarterly during 2022-23 and consists of seven
Members and two Independent Members. The Performance & Audit Committee Annual Report
2022-23 was presented at the June 2023 meeting. The annual report included the annual
Performance & Audit Committee Self-Assessment. The self-assessment highlighted the need
for further training to Members and will be actioned during the 2023-24 year.

4. Internal Audit

Internal Audit provide an independent assurance and advisory service to assist Council in
achieving its objectives and improving the effectiveness of internal control, risk management
and governance processes. The Service is satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been
undertaken to allow an opinion to be given as to the adequacy and effectiveness of
governance, risk management and control. In giving this opinion, it should be noted that
assurance can never be absolute.

Overall, Internal Audit provided a ‘satisfactory’ annual assurance opinion in relation to the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, risk management and
control based on the audit work finalised during 2022-23. This opinion is based on the
following:

+ For the 2022-23 year, 23 audits were completed with 15 (65%) of the audits obtaining
a satisfactory assurance and 8 audits receiving a limited assurance rating (35%).

¢ Management responses to Internal Audit work, with paricular attention to the
acceptance of all recommendations and progress to address significant issues.

» Risk Management further embedded across Council in 2022-23 and the ongoing
management of key corporate risks.

+ The evidence set out in the review of the Council’'s Code of Governance and Assurance
Statements regarding the range of assurances and governance processes in place.

However, some weaknesses and areas for improvement have been identified through internal
audit work. Eight audits in the 2022-23 year received a limited assurance rating in relation to
Waste Contracts, Planning, Budgetary Control, Absence Management, Trade Waste, Capital
Programme, Loughgall Country Park (LCP) and MSW Growth Deal. The keys issues identified
from audit and governance work were as follows:

+« The audit of Waste Contacts highlighted significant weaknesses with the current
contract management arrangements of waste expenditure. Given the value of some
of these contracts it is imperative that robust contract management processes are
developed and embedded going forward. The continued used of expired contracts is a
cause for concern, especially given that original signed documentation for some of
these contracts could not be found. Improved contract management arrangements are
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required across a number of Council Departments. Progress has already been made
around the recording of contracts on a contract register and monitoring by the
procurement section. Work is progressing to establish a Contract Management Policy
which will help provide a consistent approach to contract management.

The key risk from the Planning audit relates to the introduction of a new Planning Portal
at the end of 2022, and the operational difficulties the system has presented. This has
had an adverse impact on service delivery since December 2022, The main issues
that are required to be addressed at the time of the audit relate to accessing
management information from the Portal particularly around daily income reconciliation
reports, case number reporting and deferred income reporting. The audit also
highlighted the continued absence of operational procedures in the Department.

The review of Budgetary Control highlighted that there was a lack of evidence in some
areas of adequate engagement between Budget Holders, Heads of Department,
Strategic Directors and Finance during the estimates process for some Departments.
A thorough review is required particularly by larger Departments to ensure all
reoccurring costs are included and assigned to appropriate cost codes at the budget
setting process. In addition, there was a lack of evidence by some Departments of
reviewing monthly management accounts and limited engagement with Finance on this
process. Given the Efficiencies Programme of work that has to be delivered from 2023
onwards, intensive review of budgets is critical. It is recommended going forward that
budgets are a standard agenda item with actions and decisions documented.

The follow up audit on absence management identified a lack of progress with the
introduction of one time recording system across Council. There continues to be
various approaches to time recording across Council which is resulting in
inconsistencies and ineffective practices. The review also noted that that some Return
to Work interviews were not completed/recorded, and the Absence Management
System (PAMS) has not been updated as yet to automatically identify when triggers
have been reached.

The key risk in relation to Trade Waste is that customers receive collections without
payment. This risk has been present since 2016/17 due to weaknesses in the current
system and the delay in invoicing and delay in receiving payments. To rectify this a new
Trade Waste system is required to be put in place. There are also three separate
databases kept for the three areas leading to inconsistencies in the way customers are
treated in each area. It is expected that the new system will be implemented in 2023-
24,

The Capital Programme audit highlighted inconsistent practices across some
Departments in progressing capital projects. A specific procedure is required to be put
in place for projects that sit outside the approved capital programme to ensure
appropriate governance arrangements are in place. Improvements are also required
around the post project evaluation of capital projects.

The audit of Loughgall Country Park (LCP} highlighted the over-reliance on one
individual within the facility. Should that staff member leave or be absent on a long-
term basis Internal Audit are concerned that there are currently inadequate controls in
place to ensure the Park can continue to operate efficiently. There was a lack of
documented procedures for key business processes which could lead to inconsistent
practices and a risk of over reliance on the continued availability of key personnel.

27



¢ The audit of MSW Growth Deal identified a number of governance control weaknesses
for the programme including the lack of a formal agreement between the three partner
Councils, the lack of an adequate risk management framework and the need for further
dedicated resource to oversee and administer the programme. Significant
improvements have been made to address these governance issues.

In all cases recommendations have been agreed with senior management, improvement plans
have been drawn up and priority actions are required to be implemented within defined
timescales. Internal Audit will undertake follow up reviews on all limited audits to verify the
implementation of recommendations. The progress on the implementation of Internal and
External audit recommendations will be reported twice yearly to the Performance & Audit
Committee. In addition, an update on overdue priority one recommendations will be brought
to each Performance & Audit Committee. Audit recommendations made in previous years
continued to be followed-up in 2022-23. There were six overdue priority one recommendations
at the end of 2022-23 that are currently being progressed by management.

Internal Audit also provided advice and guidance across Council as required during 2022-23
in relation to audit, risk and governance issues.

An external review of the Internal Audit function was carried out in May/June 2019 which
concluded that the Internal Audit Function generally conforms to Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS). Implementation of recommendations made as part of this review have
been implemented. An Internal Audit self-assessment against the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards was completed in May 2023 with the conclusion being that Internal Audit was
substantially compliant with the standards and is therefore operating effectively.

5. Other explicit reviews/assurance mechanisms

Throughout the year the Council undertook / was subject to a number of external
reviews/accreditations. The following provides details of some of the more significant reviews,
accreditations and awards obtained throughout the year, to provide additional assurance in
respect of the Council’s Governance arrangements:

» Risk Management further embedded across Council in 2022-23 and is a continuously
evolving process. A risk register is developed for all significant Council projects. The
Corporate Risk Register is presented quarterly to both EMT and the Performance &
Audit Committee.

 Internal Health and Safety inspections by Corporate H&S Officers with regular reports
to the EMT.

» External funding received throughout the year is subject to independent audits from the
relevant funders including Government Departments and SEUPB.

» The Northern Ireland Audit Office provides a level of assurance through the provision
of their annual audit and issuing of a management letter which includes an action plan
to address issues identified and proposals of improvement in relation to Council's
performance duties.

» Council participated in the 2022-23 NFI data matching exercise. The number of
matches was relatively low and no fraudulent activity was identified from the
investigation of matches.

* No data breaches reported to ICO during 2022-23,

» The Council retained the 1ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management System
accreditation.

e The Environmental Health Department retained the 1SO 9001 accreditation in
September 2022.
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e 2022 Environmental Benchmarking Survey silver award.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) introduced a new
Financial Management Code (FM Code) in 2020-21. The FM Code requires authorities to
demonstrate that the processes they have in place satisfy the principles of good financial
management, which is an essential part of ensuring that public sector finances are sustainable.

The Council has reviewed its compliance against the FM Code through a self-assessment
exercise in 2022-23 and it was deemed that the Council is generally compliant with the
standards. A number of improvements were implemented in the 2022-23 year to further
strengthen compliance including the development of the Medium Term Financial Plan for 2024-
2029. '

Significant Governance Issues

The significant governance issues for 2022-23 were identified through a fundamental review
of the Corporate Risk Register and review of the Directors’ and Heads of Department Annual
Assurance Statements.

Five issues were declared in last year's governance statement with four of these continuing to
be declared as issues in this year's statement.

The following issue is no longer considered a significant governance issue:

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

In 2022-23 Council was impacted by Industrial Action which resulted in disruption of Council
Services over a 6 week period. In October 2022 negotiations with Trade Unions were
completed and a conciliation agreement was reached with Joint Trade Unions in respect of the
pay aspects of the dispute as well as agreement to progress and conclude other aspects of
the dispute relating to harmonisation and structure issues.

The significant governance issues for 2022-23 are listed below:

1. CYBER SECURITY

Cyber Security continues to be a key risk to Council and is overseen through the Council's
Risk Management processes. There has been a major increase in security threats over the
last few years and this trend is continuing. The National Cyber Security Centre has provided
advice to public sector organisations to continue to take action to improve their cyber resilience
due to heightened cyber threat due to the war in Ukraine. Council have made significant
progress in implementing recommendations from an IT Internal Audit report which will further
strengthen controls in this area. The Council is working on developing a Cyber Security
Strategy which in turn will improve the resilience of ICT systems. Ongoing investment in this
area will be necessary to mitigate related risks as far as possible.

2. LEGAL CASES

Two Judicial Reviews that have been previously reported in the previous years were closed in
the 2022-23 year. However, the final costs to Council are not yet known. In relation to
Southern Regional College, the Court of Appeal Hearing was held in September and October
2022 with the outcome that the Planning Permission granted was quashed (overturning the
decision made by the High Court). An order of costs was made against the Council, but the
amount of costs is not yet known.
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In relation to the Knock lveagh planning decision, relating to the former Department for the
Environment, the Council withdrew its application for judicial review against the Department in
May 2022. On 12th October 2022 the Council issued an enforcement notice against the
operator and the landowner which has been appealed (by the operator). The enforcement
appeal was heard by the Planning Appeals Commission at the end of June 2023. A decision
is expected in the autumn. This is a complex matter that may ultimately result in a liability to
Council.

3. FINANCIAL PLANNING AND RESILIENCE

The 2022-23 year was financially challenging given the considerable increases in inflation, the
significant hike in energy prices and unprecedented pay rises for ail Council staff; all during a
time of recovery from the impact of COVID pandemic on frontline service delivery. Central
government funding has continued to decrease over the last two years. The Council undertook
a detailed, intensive and robust Estimates Process in setting budgets for 2023/24 but there
remains a high degree of financial uncertainty regarding inflation and the cost of goods and
services. Council have developed an Efficiency Programme from the 2022-23 year onwards
and this will play an important part in the ongoing management and control of Council's
finances.

4. RECRUITMENT CHALLENGES AND THE FILLING OF KEY POSTS

A key challenge has been the ability to fill vacant posts across the Council in the |ast two years
with a reduction in the labour market and skilled labour shortages contributing to this issue. A
number of recruitment exercises have had to be run multiple times in order to fill avaitable
roles. There is a risk to service delivery in the absence of key posts being filled. Council is
actively working to fill vacant posts and has introduced a number of new methods of attracting
applicants such as job fairs and the offer of apprenticeships and training roles,

ol

Signed Date 21st September 2023

Chief Financial Officer

Date 21st September 2023
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Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 March 2023

introduction

The Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 require
larger local government bodies to prepare a remuneration report as part of the statement of
accounts.

Allowance and Remuneration Arrangements

Councillors

Allowances are payable by councils to councillors and committee members under Part 3 of
the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 and The Local Government
(Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2019 which came into operation on
1 October 2019.

Guidance and determinations on Councillors’ Allowances applicable from 1 April 2022 were
issued by the Department for Communities on 25 January 2022 (Circular LG 03/2023).
Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors are published on the council’'s website
at www.armaghbanbridgecraigavon.gov.uk.

Following local elections on 2 May 2019, 462 councillors were elected to the 11 new councils
for a four year term. Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council had 41
councillors in 2022/23.

Senior Employees

The remuneration of senior employees employed by the Council is determined by the
Council in line with that determined by the National Joint Councii (NJC) for Local
Government Services. Senior staff are those staff who are members of the Executive
Management Team.

Council appointments of employees are made in accordance with the Local Government
Staff Commissions’ Code of Procedures on Recruitment and Selection, which requires
appointment to be on merit and on the basis of fair and open competition.

Unless otherwise stated below, the officials covered by this report hold appointments that are
open-ended.
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Allowances paid to Councillors

The total amount paid to Councillors by way of allowances, under Part 3 of the Local
Government Finance Act (Northern ireland) 2011 and the Local Government (Payments to
Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2019 was:

Table 1: Total Allowances paid to Councillors (audited information)

2022/23 ) 2021722

Allowance Total Number of Total Number of

Allowances Councillors Allowances | Councillors

receiving receiving
£ Allowance £ Allowance

Basic Allowance 680,466 44 631,721 42
Special Responsibility 116,943 31 107,406 29
Allowance
Mayor’s Allowance 19,814 19,541
Deputy Mayor’s Allowance 8,851 8,684 2
Mileage Allowance 13,744 16 10,588 12
Public Transport and Other 248 5 45 2
Travel
Subsistence 330 4 1,140 6
Courses/ 21,146 7,453 0
Conferences visits
(registration & joining fees)
Dependants’ Carers 419 1 0 0
Allowance
TOTAL ALLOWANCES 862,061 786,578

Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors in 2022/2023 are published on the
council website at www.armaghbanbridgecraigavon.gov.uk/council/councillor-information.

Independent Representatives

The Council has a contract of service with two independent representatives on the
Performance and Audit Committee. The amount payable per representative per meeting is
£250 on attendance. There were four meetings held during 2022/23.
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Remuneration of Senior Employees

The remuneration of senior employees covers the Executive Management Team.

Table 2: Remuneration (including salary) (audited information)

Officers 2022/2023 2021/22
Salary Bonus | Benefits Total Salary Bonus | Benefits | Total
(Full year | Payments | in kind (Full year | Payments | in kind
equivalent (to equivalent (to
in brackets nearest in brackets nearest
where £100) where £100)
applicable) applicable)
£'000 £'000 £ £'000 £°000 £'000 £ £'000
Chief 125-130 0 0 125 -130 125-130 0 0 125 -
Executive 130
R Wilson
Deputy Chief 50-55 0 0 50-55 0 0 0 0
Executive (100-105)
C Stoops
Director of 95-100 0 0 95-100 95 - 100 0 0 95 - 100
Community
and Growth
O Murtagh
Director of 30-35 0 0 30-35 95 - 100 0 0 95 - 100
Neighbourhood | (95 - 100)
Services
S O’'Gorman
Director of 75 -80 0 0 75-80 0 0 0 0
Neighbourhood | (90 - 95)
Services
J Hayes
Director of 105-110 0 0 105-110 95-100 0 0 95 - 100
Performance
and Strategy
S McNicholl*

*Salary for 2022/23 includes a one-off payment during the year. Salary Band excluding this
was £95k-100k.

Councils are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest
paid member of the Executive Management Team and the median remuneration of the

Council's workforce.
The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Management Team
in the financial year 2022/23 was £125k - £130k. This was 4.3 times the median
remuneration of the workforce, which was £29.4k. (2021/22 5.0 times)

Table 3: Relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the
Executive Management Team/Senior Management Team and the median remuneration
of the Council’s workforce (audited information)

Salary Band of Highest Paid member of
the Executive Management Team

Median Total Remuneration

Ratio

2022/23 2021/22
£'000 £°000 !
£125-£130 £125£130 |
£29.4 £257 I
4.3 5.0
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in 2022/23, no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest paid member of
the Executive Management Team.

Total remuneration includes salary, honus payments and benefits in kind.

Salary
“Salary” includes gross salary, overtime and any gratia payments.

Bonus Payments

Bonus payments are based on performance levels attained and are made as part of the
appraisal process. Bonuses relate to the performance in the year in which they become
payable to the individual.

Benefits in Kind
The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits provided by the employer and
treated by HM Revenue and Customs as a taxable emolument.

Exit Packages for staff

The number of exit packages provided to all staff by the Council, together with total cost per
band and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below:

Table 4: Exit Packages in 2022/23 (audited information)

2022/23 2021/22
Severance Number of Number of Total Total Cost Number of Number of Total Total Cost of
Package Compulsory other Number of of Compulsory other Number of | Packages in
Cost Band Redundancies departures Exit Packages Redundancies departures Exit each Cost
agreed Packages in each agreed Packages Band
in each Cost Band in each
Cost Band Cost Band £'000
£'000

£0 - £20,000 0 0 0 0 1 2 3 36
£20,001- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
£40,000
£40,001 0 0 0 1} 0 0 0 0
£60,000
£60,001 0 0 0 0 0 0 o] 0
£80,000
£80,001- o 0 0 0 o] 0 0 1]
£100,000
£100,00% 0 0 o] 0 0 i} 0 1]
£150,000
£150,001 0 0 c 0 0 0 0 0
£200,000
£200,001 0 0 0 1] o] 0 0 0
£250,000

Total ] 1] 1] 1] 1 2 3 36
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Pension Benefits

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Northern Ireland) (the Scheme) is a funded defined
benefit pension scheme, which provides retirement benefits for council employees on a
“career average revalued earnings” basis from 1 April 2015. Prior to that date benefits were
built up on a “final salary” basis.

From 1 April 2015, a member builds up retirement pension at the rate of 1/49th pensionabie
pay for each year. Pension benefits in relation to membership between 1 April 2009 and 31
March 2015 were built up at the rate of 1/60th pensionable pay for each year of membership.
There is no automatic lump sum provided in respect of membership after 31 March 2009.
Pension benefits in relation to any membership before 1 April 2009 were built up at the rate
of 1/80th (pension) and 3/80ths (tax-free lump sum) of pensionable pay for each year of
membership up to 31 March 2008. At retirement, members may give up some pension for
additional lump sum, subject to HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) limits. The conversion
rate is £12 additional lump sum for every £1 of pension given up.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011. The Scheme application is
modified to reflect the fact that councillors hold an elected office. Councillor members have
always accrued pension on a career average basis. Prior to 1 April 2015 pension was
accrued at a rate of 1/60th and thereafter at a rate of 1/49th.

The Scheme is funded by contributions made by both employees/councillors and employers.
Prior to 1 April 2009, a member’s contribution rates were fixed at 6% of their pensionable
remuneration (except for those who were entitled to contribute to the Scheme at 5% before 1
February 2003 and have remained in continuous employment). Tiered member contribution
rates, determined by the whole-time equivalent rate of pay, were introduced from 1 April
2009. From 1 April 2015, the member contribution rates are determined on the actual rate of

pay.
The ranges for the bands for tiered contribution rates are revised by the Department for
Communities in April each year in accordance with the increase applied to a pension in
payment. The bands, effective from 1 April 2022, were as follows:

Table 5: Employee Contribution Rates

Band Range Employee Contribution Rate
1 £0 - £15,400 5.5%

2 £15,401 - £23,700 5.8%

3 £23,701 - £39,500 6.5%

4 £39,501- £48,000 6.8%

5 £48,001 - £95,100 8.5%

6 More than £95,100 10.5%

Employers’ contribution rates are determined by the fund’s actuary every three years at the
triennial valuation. A formal triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund as at 31 March 2019 was
carried out in 2020/21 and set the employer contribution rates for the 3 years commencing 1
April 2020 as follows:

Table 6: Employer Contribution Rates

Year Employer Contribution Rate Deficit Funding
1 April 2020 — 31 March 2021 19.5% £nil
1 April 2021 — 31 March 2022 19.5% £nil
1 April 2022 — 31 March 2023 19.5% £nil

35



The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on
27 June 2014 and The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment and Transitional
Provisions) Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 30 June 2014. Both sets of
regulations are effective from 1 April 2015.

Councillors have only been able to join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore have not
accrued significant benefits this far. However, the in-year pension contributions made by the
Council for all counciliors during 2022/23 was £148k (2021/22 £142k).

The value of pension benefits for the Executive Management Team of the Council accrued
during the year was as follows:

Table 7: Pension Benefits of Senior Staff in 2022/2023 (audited information)

Executive Accrued Real increase | CETV at | CETV at Real
Pension at (decrease) in | 31/3/2023 | 31/3/2022 | increase
e I ES pension age as | pension and (decrease)
Officers at 31/3/2023 related lump in CETV
and related sum at £000 £'000
lump sum pension age £°000
£'000
£'000
55 - 60 (0-2.5) 956 885 (32)
Chief Executive
. 70-75 (5-7.5)
R Wiison
(Lump Sum) {Lump Sum)
Deputy Chief 0-25 0-25 1 0 5
Executive
C Stoops
Director of 45 - 50 (0-2.5) 851 787 (26)
Community and 60 — 65 (5-7.5)
Growth
O Murtagh (Lump Sum) (Lump Sumy}
Director of 35-40 (0-2.5) 595 562 (27)
Neighbourhood 45 -50 (2.5-5)
Services (Lump Sum) (Lump Sum)
S O’Gorman
Director of 30-35 0-25 513 440 29
Neighbourhood 35-40 0-25
Services (Lump Sum) (Lump Sum)
J Hayes
Director of 40-45 0-25 767 675 12
Performance and 65-70 (0-2.5)
Strategy (Lump Sum) (Lump Sum)
S McNicholl
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The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)

This is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by
a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued
benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. It is a payment
made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension
scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the
pension benefits, they have accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown
relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total
membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which
disclosure applies. CETVs are calculated in accordance with The Occupational Pension
Schemes (Transfer Values) (Amendment) Regulations and do not take account of any actual
or potential reduction to benefits resulting from Lifetime Allowance Tax which may be due
when pension benefits are taken.

The real increase in the value of the CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It does not include the
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including
the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and
uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period. However, the real
increase calculation uses common actuarial factors at the start and end of the period so that
it disregards the effect of any changes in factors and focuses only on the increase that is
funded by the employer.

off 8

Chief Executive
21st September 2023
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Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer

| certify that:

a. The Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023 on pages 44 to 108
has been prepared in the form directed by the Department for Communities and
under the accounting policies set out on pages 48 to 68.

b. In my opinion the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the income and
expenditure and cash flows for the financial year and the financial position as at the
end of the financial year ended 31 March 2023.

Qb

Chief Financial Officer

Date 21st September 2023

Council Approval of Statement of Accounts

These accounts were approved by resolution of the Performance & Audit Committee on 21st
September 2023.

Chair
Date 21 ptember 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ARMAGH CITY, BANBRIDGE AND
CRAIGAVON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Opinion on financial statements

! have audited the financial statements of Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council
for the year ended 31 March 2023 under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The
financial statements comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Movement in
Reserves Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and the related notes including significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
supported by UK adopted international accounting standards.

| have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described in that report as
having been audited.

In my opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory requirements
and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022-23,
of the financial position of Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council as at
31 March 2023 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government {(Accounts and
Audit) Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2015 and the Department for Communities’
directions issued thereunder.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of this certificate. My staff and | are independent of Armagh
City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and have fulfiled our other ethicai responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. | believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, | have concluded that Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon
Borough Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate.

Based on the work | have performed, | have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on Armagh City,
Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at
least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

The going concern basis of accounting for Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council is
adopted in consideration of the requirements set out in the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting, which require entities to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements where it anticipated that the services which they provide will continue
into the future.

39



My responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer with respect to going
concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts other than
the financial statements, the parts of the Remuneration Report described in that report as having
been audited, and my audit certificate and report. The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the
other information included in the Statement of Accounts. My opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in my
report, | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

My responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If | identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, | am required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work | have performed, |
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, | am required to report
that fact.

I have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters

In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Department for Communities’ directions made under the Local
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and

» the information given in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31
March 2023 is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which | report by exception

In light of the knowledge and understanding of Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council
and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, | have not identified material misstatements
in the Statement of Accounts.

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which | report to you if:
* in my opinion:
o the Annual Governance Statement:

* does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022-23;

* does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for
Communities;

* is misleading or inconsistent with other information 1 am aware of from my
audit; or

o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or



o the statement of accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

o |have not received ali of the information and explanations | require for my audit, or

e |issue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local Government (Northern
Ireland} Order 2005; or

* |designate under Article 12 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 any
recommendation made to the Council; or

e | exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the Local
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005.

Responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council’s and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities,
the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for:
» the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view;

* suchinternal controls as the Chief Financial Officer determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error;

e assessing Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Chief Financial Officer anticipates that the
services provided by Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council will not
continue to be provided in the future.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with the Local Government
{Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue a certificate that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

| design procedures in line with my responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of non-compliance with laws and regulation, including fraud.

My procedures included:

¢ obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to Armagh
City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council through discussion with management
and application of extensive public sector accountability knowledge. The key laws and
regulations | considered included the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005;
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» making enquires of management and those charged with governance on Armagh City,
Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council’s compliance with laws and regulations;

¢ making enquiries of internal audit, management and those charged with governance as
to susceptibility to irregularity and fraud, their assessment of the risk of material
misstatement due to fraud and irregularity, and their knowledge of actual, suspected
and alleged fraud and irreguiarity;

* completing risk assessment procedures to assess the susceptibility of Armagh City,
Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council’s financial statements to material
misstatement, including how fraud might occur. This included, but was not limited to,
an engagement director led engagement team discussion on fraud to identify particular
areas, transaction streams and business practices that may be susceptible to materia!
misstatement due to fraud;

* engagement director oversight to ensure the engagement team collectively had the
appropriate competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance
with the applicable legal and regulatory framework throughout the audit;

¢ documenting and evaluating the design and implementation of internal controls in
place to mitigate risk of material misstatement due to fraud and non-compliance with
laws and regulations;

* designing audit procedures to address specific laws and regulations which the
engagement team considered to have a direct material effect on the financial
statements in terms of misstatement and irregularity, including fraud. These audit
procedures included, but were not limited to, reading Council and committee minutes,
and agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation
and approvals as appropriate;

¢ addressing the risk of fraud as a result of management override of controls by:

o performing analytical procedures to identify unusual or unexpected
relationships or movements;

o testing journal entries to identify potential anomalies, and inappropriate or
unauthorised adjustments;

o assessing whether judgements and other assumptions made in determining
accounting estimates were indicative of potential bias; and

o investigating significant or unusual transactions made outside of the normal
course of business.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of my certificate.

This report is made solely to the Members of Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council
in accordance with the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no other purpose, as
specified in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Local Government Auditor and Local Government
Bodies.
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Certificate

| certify that | have completed the audit of accounts of Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough
Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005
and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

Cotormn Coe

Colette Kane

Local Government Auditor
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street
BELFAST

BT7 1EU

28" September 2023
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Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation, Councils raise taxation fo cover
expenditure in accordance with statutory requiremnents; this may be different frorm the accounting cost. The taxation position Is shown in
both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement in Reserves Statement.

2022/23 3 2021722

¥

Community & Growth 2 26.867.563 (10.159.933) 16.707.630 26,517,319 (11,662, 720) 14,854,599
Deputy CEQ & CEO 2 9.540.114 (734.147) 8,805,973 8.655.50% (721.502) 7.933.607
Nelghbourhood Services 2 69,527,673 (11.156,577) 58.371.096 65.859.650 (9.3569.331) 56.490.319
Strategy & Performance 2 4,252,668 (373.797) 3.878.871 3.910.364 (285.379) 3.624.985
Other Services 2 2,489.155 (991,949 1,497,204 1.589.816 (3.730.157) (2.140.341)

Cost of Services cn
Continuing Operations

112,677,173 {23,416,2%7) 89,260,776 106,532,658 (25,769.489) 80,763,169

Other Operating Expenditure/

8 (636,155) (636,155) 161,173 141,173
Income

Financing ond Investment

] 565, £l ,267,
Income and Expenditure 7 RELEET (637.674) 3,565,860 4794799 527619 4,267,180

Net Cperating Expenditure 117,080,707 (24,890,226) 92,190,481 111,488,630 (24,297,108) 85,191,522

Toxation and Nen-Specific 10 (B4344.443)  (84.344.443) (80,085,673) (80,085,673
Grant Income

(Surplus)/Deficit on the
Provision of Services

117,080,707 (109,234,669) 7,846,038 111,488,630 (104,382,781 5,105,849

(Surplus)/Deficit on
revaluation of non-current 1 (13.246,112) (12.039.373)
assels

Remedasurements of the Net

Defined Benefit Liability 21 (8%.109,000) (43.688,000)
(Assat)
Other Comprehensive Income and Exgenditure (102,355,112) (55,727,373}

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure {?4,509,074) (50,621,524)
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Armmagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Movement in Reserves Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

The Movement In Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the different reserves heldly the
authority. analysed into 'usoble reserves' (ie those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce Iocal taxation) and other
‘unusable reserves’. The Statement shows how the movements in year of the Council's reserves are broken down between gains and
losses incurred in accordance with generailly accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustment required to return to the
amounts chargeable to council tax for the year. The Net Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory General Fund Balance
movements in the year following those adjustments.

Al 216,070

Movement in reserves during
the year

Surplus/ (Deficit) on the .
provislon of services LR ) (5.105.849) . (5.105,849)
Other Comprehensive

Income and Expenditura SR 8o.721.378

Total Comprehensive Income
and Expendifure (5,105,849) . - {5,105,849) 58,727,373 50,621,524
Adjustments between

accounting basls & funding 14,126,959 (1.337.478) . 12,78%.483 (12,789.483)

under regulations

Net increase before transfers

to Statutory ond Other 9,021,110 (1,337,476) - 7,683,634 42,937,890 50,621,524
Reserves

Transfers to / from Statutory

A
and Other Reserves {1:146.804) 114,604

Increase/ Decrease in year 7.874,546 (190,912) - 7.683,634 42,937,890 50,621,524

Batance as at 31 March 2022
Movement in ressrves during
the year

27,754,945

20,144,759

47,899,704

72,927,771 120,827,475

Surplus/ (Deficit) on the i
provision of sevices (7.845.038) (7.846,038) - (7.846.038)
Other Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure 102,355,112 102.355.112

Total Comprehensive income

and Expenditure (7,846,038 : - (7,846,038) 102,356,112 94,509,074

Adjustments between
accounting basls & funding 8,014,558 3.55017 2100 496 13,657,171 (13.667.171)
under regulations

Net increase before tronsfers

to Statutory and Other 168,520 33,5507 2,101,494 5821,133 88,687,941 94,509,074
Roserves

Transfers to / from Statutory

and Other Reserves 1,485 (a9.48%) : :

Increase in year 660,005 3,059,432 2,101,696 5,821,133 88,687,941 94,509,074

Balance as at 31 March 2023 28,414,950

23,202,191 2,101,696 53,720,837

161,615,712 215,336,549
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Armagh Cily, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Balance Sheet as ot 31 March 2023

The Balonce Sheet shows the value as ot the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Council. The net assets
of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first
category of reserves are usable reserves, le those reserves that the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need fo
rmaintain a prudent level of reservas and any statutory Emitations on their use. The second category of reserves is those that the Council
is not able fo use to pravide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unredlised gains and losses (for example the
Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold
timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line * Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulotions'.

31st March 2023 31st March 2022

260,260,701

Fixed Assefs =T 258,399,420

Long Term Debtors 15 906,063 1,033,504
LONG TERM ASSETS 259,305,483 251,294,205
Inventorles 14 378.875 357,989
Short Term Debtors 15 10,253,371 11,870,561
Cash and Cash £quivolents 25 13.167,852 11,216,817
Assets Held for Sale n 1,946,100 943,000
Other Long Termn Assets 21 2,200.000 -
CUERENT ASSETS 27 946,198
Short Term Borrowing 17 5,267,292 8,219,686
Short Term Creditors 18 11,327,085 11,095,007
Provislons 19 306,738 272.695
CURRENT LVABILITIES 16,901,115 19,587,388
Long Term Creditors 18 29,889 29.889
Provislons 1% 3,485,560 3.420.960
Long Term Borrowing 17 51,498,568 56,765,860
Other Long Term Labilities 21 - 75,051.000
LONG TERM LIABILITIES 55,014,017 135,267,70%
NET ASSETS 215,334,549 120,827,475
USABLE RESERVES
Capltat Receipts Reserve 26 2,101,696 -
Capltal Gronts Unappliad Account 26 4,174,634 6237
Capital Fund 26 3,530,940 3.530.940
Other Balances and Reserves 26 15,498,617 15,990,102
General Fund 26 28,414,950 27,754,945
47 899 704
UNUSABLE RESERVES
Capital Adjustrment Account 27 54,658,631 52,394,680
Revoluation Reserve 27 105,762,475 97,209.873
Penslons Reserve 27 2,200,000 (75.051,000)
Accurmulated Absences Account 27 (1.005,394) (1.210.067)
Provisions Discount Rate Reserve 27 - (415,718)

161,615,712 72,927,771

MNET WORTH 215,336,549 120,827,475



Amagh Clty, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Cash Flow Statement at 31 March 2023

The Cash Flow Statement shows the chonges in cash and cash equivalents of the Councll during the reporting period. The stotement
shows how the Councii generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities. The ameunt of net cash flows arising from operating activitios is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the
Councll are funded by way of taxation and grant incorme or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities
represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for rescurces which are Intended to contribute to the Councit's future
service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital
(ie barrowing) to the Council.

2022/23 2021722

S . — =

Net Deficlt on the provision of services (7.846,038) (5.105,849)

Adjustment for non-cash movements 25 23,261,412 24,407,865
e o ot 2 ol PeFOMENGL g ooy azmem
Net cash flows from operating activities 25 8,349,781 18,070,214
Cash flows from Investing Activities f 3 25 1,800,940 (7.331,375)
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities P (8.219.686) (11.503.575)
Net increase or decrease in cash ond cash equivalents 1.951,035 (764,736)
Cash and cash equivatents at the beginning of the reporting perlod 11214817 11.981,553
Cash and cosh equivalents at the end of the reporing period 13,167,852 11,216,817



Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1. Accounting Policies

a) General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council's transactions for the 2022/23 financial
year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2023. The Council is required to prepare an
annual Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Department for Communities in
accordance with regulations 3 (7) and (8) in the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices.

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2022/23, supported by Internationa! Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The
accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost,
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 also
requires disclosure in respect of:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
i. Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are
made or received. In particular:

- Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of goods,
is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in
accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.

- Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant risks
and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

- Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure reliably
the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories
on the Balance Sheet.

- Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.

- Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively
as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.
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- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where it is
doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to
revenue for the income that might not be collected.

ii. Acquisitions and Discontinued Operations

Council has neither acquired nor discontinued operations (or transferred operations under
machinery of government arrangements) during the financial year.

ili. Provision for Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading Reviews

Council has made a provision for the costs of outstanding job evaluations arising from the
Council's Single Status review.

iv. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments
that mature in three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council's cash management.

v. Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent assets are not recognised in the
Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an
inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

vi. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
obligation whose existence wifl only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to
the accounts.
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vii. Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the year-
end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
bonuses and non-monetary benefits {(e.g. cars) for current employees, and are recognised as an
expense in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made for
the cost of holiday entitlements earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which
employees can carry forward into the next financial year.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate
an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision to accept
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to
the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, to a corporate service segment at the
earlier of:

a) when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer, or
b) when the related restructuring costs are incurred.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require
the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension
fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. Inthe Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from
the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement
termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and
pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post-Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers'
Pension Fund administered by the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Superannuation
Committee. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lJump sums and
pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council.

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund is accounted for as a defined
benefits scheme.

The liabilities/assets of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund
attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit method — i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation
to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality
rates, employee turnover rates, etc. and projections of projected earnings for current
employees.
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Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 4.7% (based
on the Aon GBP Single Agency Select AA Curve, using the constituents of the iBoxx index of
AA rated corporate bonds and the duration of the Employer's liabilities).

The assets of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' pension fund attributable to the
Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

quoted securities — current bid price
unguoted securities — professional estimate
property — market value

unitised securities — current bid price

The change in the net pensions is analysed into the following components:
- Within the Cost of Services

(a) Current Service Cost ~ the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
(liabilities) resulting from employee service in the current period

(b) Past Service Cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statements.

- Within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

(c) Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) — the change in the net defined benefit
liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time.

- Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (Remeasurements)

(d) The Return on Plan Assets - excluding amounts recognised in the Net Interest on the Net
Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. This includes interest, dividends and other income derived from the
plan assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets, less any
costs of managing plan assets, and any tax payable by the plan itself other than tax included in
the actuarial assumptions used to measure the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

(e) Actuarial Gains and Losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the
actuaries have updated their assumptions, charged to the Pensions Reserves as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

- Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations

(f) Contributions by Scheme Participants — the increase in scheme liabilities and assets due to
payments into the scheme by employees (where increased contribution increases pension due
to the employee in the future).
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(g) Contributions by the Employer - the increase in scheme assets due to payments into the
scheme by the employer.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in
the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the Pensions
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with
debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but
unpaid at the year-end. The balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures
the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on
the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for
using the same policies that are applied to the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers'
pension fund.

As a result of Local Government Reform on 1 April 2015, staff that transferred from Central
Government to the Council retained membership of the Northern [reland Civil Service (NICS)
Pension Scheme. The schemes provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums
and pensions). However, the arrangements for the NICS Pension Scheme mean that liabilities
for these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the Council. The scheme is
therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future
payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet.

viii. Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is
authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period — the
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement of
Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a
material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated
financial effect.

The Statement of Accounts may subsequently be adjusted up to the date when they are
authorised for issue. This date will be recorded on the Statement of Accounts and is usually the
date the Local Government Auditor issues the certificate and opinion. Where material
adjustments are made in this period they will be disclosed.
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Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts.

ix. Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in
the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of
the Council’s financial performance.

X.  Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and
Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period
adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or
the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other
events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a
change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been
applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

xi. Financial Instruments

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and
are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and investment Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of
interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was
originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for
the year according to the loan agreement.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread
over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was
remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it
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was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund Balance is
managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to
the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line in the CIES in the year of
repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase has taken place as part of a restructuring
of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange of existing instruments, the
premium or discount is respectively deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the new or
modified loan and the write-down to the CIES is spread over the life of the loan by an
adjustment to the effective interest rate.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics.
There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:

- amortised cost
- fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the coniractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual
credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of
the asset muitiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the financial
assets held by the Council, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is the amount receivable for the year in the loan
agreement,

The Council has made a loan to a voluntary organisation at less than market rates (soft loan).
When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the CIES (debited to the appropriate service)
for the present value of the interest what will be forgone over the life of the instrument, resulting
in a lower amortised cost than the outstanding principal. Interest is credited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES at a marginally higher effective rate of
interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to
increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that
the impact of soft loans on the District Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial
year — the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the CIES to the net gain required
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against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments
Adjustment Accounts in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Expected Credit Loss Model

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised
cost [or where relevant FVOCI], either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss
model also applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are
recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the Council.

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not
take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial
part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially
recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly
or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in
the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services.

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques:
- instruments with quoted market prices - the market price

- other instruments with fixed and determinable payments - discounted cash flow analysis.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following
three ilevels:

* Level 1 inputs - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the
authority can access at the measurement date.

* Level 2 inputs - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset, either directly or indirectly.

* Level 3 inputs - unobservable inputs for the asset.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
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xii.  Foreign Currency Translation

Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction
was effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-end, they are
reconverted at the spot exchange rate as at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses are
recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement if material.

xiii. Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable
assurance that:

- the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
- the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions
are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in
the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as
specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants and
all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

xiv. Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by
the Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected
that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the
Council.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is
technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available)
and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by
being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably
as attributable to the asset and restricted to that incurred during the development phase
(research expenditure is not capitalised).
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Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily
intended to promote or advertise the Councif's goods or services.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value
of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market and
therefore in practice are carried at revalued cost. An asset is tested for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the
relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes,
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an
impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £5,000) the Capital Receipts
Reserve.

-xv. Inventories & Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average costing formula.

Long-term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services with the consideration allocated to the performance obligations satisfied
based on the goods or services transferred to the service recipient during the financial year.

xvi.  Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery
of services or production of goods or is held for sale.

investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the
price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurable date. As a non-financial asset, investment properties are
measured at highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually
according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and result in
a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are
not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The
gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts
Reserve.
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xvii. Landfill Allowance Scheme

The Landfill Allowances Scheme operates under the Landfill Allowances Scheme (Northern
Ireland) Regulations 2005. Local Authorities are allocated annual target figures for the
maximum amount of biodegradable municipal waste that can be sent to landfill but there are no
tradable allowances. It is not a ‘cap and trade’ scheme since landfill allowances are not
tradable. For this reason, landfill allowances are not recognised as assets on the Balance
Sheet.

xviii. Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered
separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fuifilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of specific assets.

The Council as Lessee - Finance Lease

Propenty, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at
the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a
liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the
carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down
the iease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment — applied to
write down the lease liability, and

b. a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease
term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does
not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).

The Council is not required to raise district rates to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made
from revenue towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory
requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by
a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the
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Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between
the two.

Operating Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at the
commencement of the lease).

The Council as Lessor - Finance Lease

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the
relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the
lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and
Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A
gain, representing the Council’s net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal
(i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal}, matched by a
lease asset (long term debtor) in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the lease
debtor together with any premiums received, and

b. finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not
permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a
capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund
Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the
amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future
financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts
Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are paid, the element
for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write down the lease debtor. At this
point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against District rates, as the cost of non-
current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts
are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Council as Lessor - Operating Lease

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made
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on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of
payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant
asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Xix. Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the
lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to
fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up
to the amount of any previously recognised losses in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified
back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of its carrying amount before they were
classified as held for sale: adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would
have been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale, and their recoverable
amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are decommissioned i.e. to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as
assets held for sale.

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on
disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any
revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the
Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and credited to the Capital
Receipts Reserve. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against district rates, as the cost of non-current
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

XX.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used
during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.
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Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment over
£5k is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s
potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is
charged as an expense when it is incurred. Assets are grouped under Land, Buildings,
Infrastructure, Vehicle Plant & Equipment, Community, Surplus and shown within Note 11a and
b. Further groupings are Intangible and Investment properties that are shown in note 11d and e
respectively.

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:
a. the purchase price

b. any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management

c. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the
acquisition does not have commercial substance (ie it will not lead to a variation in the cash
flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of
the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant income line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account.
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement
in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:
- infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciated historical cost

- surplus assets - the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and
best use from a market participant's perspective

- all other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its
existing use (existing use value — EUV)

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an
asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.
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Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued on a 5 year rolling basis with the
aim of having 20% of assets being subject to a physical valuation each year and the remaining
80% having a desktop revaluation carried out (Subject to any agreement to change the % each
year to ensure that, by the end of the five year cycle, 100% of assets will have been physically
inspected). Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to
recognised unrealised gains. However, gains are credited to the CIES where they arise from
the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2008 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into
the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfali.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

a. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the
accumulated gains), with any excess charged to the service line in the Comprehensive income
and Expenditure Statement.

b. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not
been recognised.

The same accounting treatment is applied to revaluation losses as a result of a general fall in
asset prices across the board as opposed to a consumption of economic benefit specific to an
asset as is in the case of impairment losses.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).

Deprecation is calculated on the following basis:
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- buildings & infrastructure are depreciated on a straight line basis up to 50 years; based on
their carrying value over the estimated remaining useful life of the asset as advised by a suitably
qualified person.

- plant and equipment, vehicles and ICT are depreciated on a straight line basis on their historic
cost using a percentage of the value of each class of asset in the Balance Sheet.

The estimated useful life of high value vehicles is reviewed each year and, where material,
adjustments are made to extend the useful life.

- infrastructure - straight line allocation up to 25 years.

- a full year’s depreciation is charged in the year of acquisition and none in the year of disposal.

Componentisation

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Componentisation is only applicable to larger value land and buildings or equipment assets.

Revaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable
based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the
Capital Adjustment Account.

xxi. Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to
knowledge and culture.

Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for future
generations because of their cultural, environmental or historic associations. They would be
held by this authority in pursuit of our overall objectives in relation to the maintenance of
heritage.

The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment for
heritage assets, e.g. where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or where
doubts arise as to its authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in accordance
with the Council's general policy on impairment.

Heritage Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains and
losses) in accordance with the Council's accounting policies on fixed assets. The Council's
collections of heritage assets are as follows:

- modern art sculptures in towns and parks.

- mayoral regalia.
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- works of art and antique furnishings held by council.
- range of art and antiquities held in council museums.

A range of categories of Heritage assets held at various council locations including FE
McWilliam Gallery and Studio, the Civic Buildings and some Town Halls were last valued as at
31 March 2019.

xxii. Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For
instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making
of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the
obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year — where it
becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower
settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant
service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles
the obligation.

xxiii. Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund Balance.
When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate
service in that year against the Surpius or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transferred back into
the General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against District Rates for the
expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial
instruments, retirement benefits, accumulated absences and provisions discount rate and do not
represent usable resources for the Council — these reserves are explained in the relevant note
to the accounts.



xxiv. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Charges to revenue for non-current assets e.g. services, support services and trading accounts
are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding fixed assets during the year:

a. depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

b. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off

¢. amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision from
revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (equal to an
amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory
guidance). Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore
replaced by minimurn revenue provision (MRP) in the General Fund Balance, by way of an
adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement for the difference between the two.

xxv. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the
relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where
the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources
or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund
Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged, so that
there is no impact on the level of District Rates.

xxvi. Value Added Tax

All expenditure and income, irrespective of whether it is revenue or capital in nature, is shown
net of Value Added Tax, unless it is irrecoverable.

xxvii. The Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC)

Due to its low levels of energy consumption, there is no requirement for the Council to
participate in the Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme.

xxviii. Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment
properties and some of its financial instruments such as equity shareholdings (other financial
instruments as applicable) at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
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- in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use
or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the Council’s financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, as follows:

* Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the authority can access at the measurement date

* Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

* Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

b) Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires
an authority to disclose information relating to the expected impact of an accounting change that
will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted. The Code also
requires that changes in accounting policy are to be applied retrospectively unless transitional
arrangements are specified, this would result in an impact on disclosures spanning two financial
years.

For 2022/23, the accounting policy changes that need to be reported are:

- Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) issued in February 2021.
- Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement
2) issued in February 2021,

¢) Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying accounting policies set out from Note 1a the Council has not had to make any critical
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
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d) Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by
the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into
account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because
balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from
the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Council's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2023 for which there is a significant risk
of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

i.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level of
repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets.

If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying amount of the
assets falls.

Valuation exercises are carried out by an independent valuer from Land and Property Services
(LPS). These are carried out based on information as at 31 March each year and subject to
assumptions at that time.

ii. Heritage assets

Valuation exercise of categories of Heritage assets are carried out by an independent valuer.
These are carried out based on information as at 31 March each year and subject to
assumptions at that time.

iii. Fair Value Measurement

The Council employs relevant experts to identify the most appropriate valuation techniques to
determine fair value.

iv. Provisions

The Council has not made a provision for bad debt arising from non-collection of rate income by
Land & Property Services (LPS) in future years at this point due to the absence of sufficiently
detailed information and uncertainty regarding how much uncollected rates will be written off by
LPS in future years. However, a prudent reserve has been created to help mitigate against the
lower level of debt write-offs processed by LPS during the pandemic and during the current
economic climate — this debt still exists and has stilt to be processed by LPS and will therefore
be a hit to Council finances in the future. Also, Council has not made a provision for the
settlement of claims arising from Equal Pay settlements due to the uncertainty of the amounts
involved.

Provisions are inherently uncertain, however the details included in note 19 have been carried
out based on information as at 31 March each year and subject to assumptions at that time,
and/or independent valuations were applicable.
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v. Pension Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes
in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of
consulting actuaries is engaged to provide the Council with expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied.

vi. Arrears

A collective assessment of the outstanding debt balances was completed based on the
Council’s credit control procedures and an allowance for impairment loss for trade receivables

has been included.
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Amagh Clty, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Councll

Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2

[ | Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants, rents, council
tax and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or eamed by authorities in accordance with
generally accepted accounting praciices. It also shows how this expenditure Is allocated for decision making purposes between the
Council's Directorates.

Community & Growth 12.792.562 3.915,068 16.707.630 101717056 4,682,893 14,854,599
Deputy CEQ & CEO 7.511.098 1.294,875 8,805,973 6,806,084 1,127,523 7.933.607
Neighbourhood Services 43,795.570 14,5756.526 58,371.096 40,728,795 15,761,524 56.490.319
Strategy & Performance 3.349.997 528,874 3.878.871 3.035.859 589,126 3,624,985
Other Services 1,475,920 21,286 1.497.206 {2.912.528) 772,187 (2,140,341}

(11,829,585)

(81,414,738)

(75,657,320)

Cpening General Fund

19,880,199

Surplus/ {Deficit) on General
Fund Balance in Year

660,005

7,874,546

A review of the presentation of local authority financial statements resulted in changes ta the Code of Accounting Practice. Councils are
required to report on the basis of how they are structured and how they operate, manitor and manage financlol performance. The
purpose of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA) is to bring together the funding framework and the accounting framework by
service. The EFA takes net expenditure chargeable ta taxation, reconciling this to the CIES surplus or deficit on the Provision of Services.
There is no impact on the balance sheet os a result of this change In accounting policy and as such a third balance sheet is not required.

The "Other Services™ heading in 2022/23 CIES relates to amounts pertaining to decisions made on Coucil Services that are not attibuted to
the Directorate Services. such os expenditure on other reserve projects, transformation, provisions and one off funded scheme costs.




Ammagh Clty, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

b Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General Fund to arrive at the
amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The relevant fransfers between reserves are explained in the
Moverment in Reserves Statement.

Adjustiments between Funding and Accounting Basls
2022/23

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at the Adjustments for  Mel ©

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Capital
Statement Amounis Purposes
Community & Growth 1.698.726 2,289,186 (72,844} 3.915.068
Daputy CEO & CEC 190,367 1.119.083 {14,575) 1,294,875
Neighbourhood Services 8,720,208 5,966,919 (111,601) 14,575,526
Shategy & Performance 535,002 {6.728) 528,874
|Other Services 20,210 1,076 21,286
Net Cost of Services 10,609,301 993,000 | (204,672) - 20,335,629
Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Ancilysls (13,832.355) 1,927.000 {415,715) 421,485 (11,829.585)
Difference betwesen General Fund suiplus or deficit
and Cormprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services (3,223,050 11,858,000 (620,387) 4591 485 8.506.044 |
Adjusiments between Funding and Accounting Basis
2021722
QNG 0 Cthe Q O Cthe » Q1
2 o A e Q O ag e
Community & Growth 2212394 2426417 44,082 - 4,682,893
Deputy CEO & CEO 23N 1,082,969 35,183 - 1,127.523
Neighbourhood Services 2,395,162 6,218,159 148,203 - 15,761,524
Strategy & Performance - 567,836 21,290 5 589.126
Other Services 723.013 54.619 (5.445) - 772,187
Net Cost of Services 12,339,940 10,350,000 243,313 22,933,253
Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysls (10.768,263) 2,155,000 {193.033) {1.146,564) (9.952,860)
Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit
and Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statemnent Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services 1.571.677 12,505,000 50.280 (1.146,564) 12,980,393




Adjustments for Capital Purposes

Adjustments to General Fund Balonces to meet the requirements of generally accepted accounting practices, this column adds in
depreciation and Impairment ond revaluation gains and losses in the services line and for:

i) Other operating expenditure - adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of assels and the amounts wiitten off for
those assets.

i) Financing and investment income and expenditure - the statutory charges for capital financing ie Minlmum Revenue Provislon and other
revenue contributicns are deducted from financing and investment income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally
accepted accounting practices.

ity Taxation and Non Specific Grant Incorme and Expenditure - Capital grants are adjusted for income not chargeable under generally
accepted accounting proctices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable without conditions or for
which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specific Grant income and Expenditure line is credited wiih
capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year,

Net change for the Pensions Adjustmenis

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of 1AS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income

- For Services: this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the authoiity as allowed by statute and the
replacement with current service costs and past service costs,

- For Financing and investment income and expenditure: the net interest on the defined benefit liability Is chorged ta the CIES.
Other statutory differences

Other statutory adjusiments between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and amounts
payablefreceivable to be recognised under statute:

- For Financing ond investment income and expenditure the other statutory adjustments column recognises adjusiments to General Fund for
the timing differences for premlums and discounts.

- The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the difference between what Is chargeable under

statutory regulations for district rates and NDR that was projected to be received af the start of the year and the income recogrised under
generally accepted accounting practices in the Code,

Other non-statutory adjustments
Other non-statutory adjustments represent amounts debited/credited to service segments which need to be adjusted against the *Other

income and expenditure from the Expenditure and Funding Analysis' line to comply with the presentational requirements in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

- For financing and investment income and expenditure the other non-statutory adjustments column recognises adjustments to service
segments, eq for interest income and expenditure and chonges in the fair values of investment properties.

- For taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure the other non-statuory adjustments column recognises adjustments to service
segments, eg for unringfenced government grants,

- Transfer to and from reserves.

71



Armagh City, Banbridge & Cralgavon Borough Councll
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

kNG Expendiiue and Incoms Anclysed by MNolura

45,058,387

Employee Beneflts Expenses 7 51,061,270

Other Services Expenditure 55,029.585 54,609.339
Depreclation. Amerlisation, Impairment 1 B.523.318 9.019,932
Interest Payrments 9 2417182 2.572.513
Loss on the Disposal of Assets 8b o 161,173
Other Expenditure od 59.352 57,286
Total Expendilture 117,080,707 111,488,630

(25.954,48%)

Faes, Charges and other service Income (23.471.397)

Interast and Investment Income 4 (432.281) (101.755)
District rate income L] (73.116.735) (70.733.356)
Govermnment grants and Confributions 0 (11,227.708) (225217
Investment Property income ed (345.393) (340,864}
Gain on Disposal of Assets Bb (636.155) -
Tolal Income {109,234,549) {106,382,781)
{Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 7,846,038 5,105,849

[5] Revarwe fios

The councll does not recelve material revenue from Contracts with Service reciplents.

T




LIl Adjustiments batween an Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulolions
[-] Amounts included/excluded in the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement but required by siatute 1o be excluded/included when

determining the Movemnent on the General Fund Balance fo: the year:

Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but required by statute fo be included when determining the Movement on
the Generol Fund Balance for the year;

Revalualion increases/decreases taken 1o Surplus/Deficlt on
fhe Provision of Services

Depreclation charged in the year on non-current assets

Net Revenue expenditure funded from caplial under statute

Caorrying amount of non current assets sold
Proceeds from the sale of PPEE, invesiment property and
intangible assets

Net charges made for retirement banefits In accordonce with
1AS 19

Employers contiibutions payable to the NILGOSC and
retirement banefits payable direct fo pensioners

Capital Grants and Donated Assets Recelvable and Applied in
yaur

Capital Grants Receivable ond Unapplied In year

Adjustments in relation 1z Short-term compensated absences
Provisions Discount Rate Reserve Adjustrment

Amaunts not included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement but required by slatute {0 be included
when determnining the Movement on the General Fund Balance
for the year:

Statutory Proviston for the financing of Capltal Investment
Direct reveniie financing of Capital Expendilure

Met fronsters (To) flrom shalulody ond olher eaimarkad meierves

Capital Fund
linterest
From Capital

Other

Capilal Recelipts Reserve

Interest

Other

Ofher Funds and earmarked reserves
Interest

From Other funds

Other

Unusable resarves

Capital Adjustment Account

MNa&lle

na

21

21
10k
279
27h

12
12

26

26e

350,053

8.173.265

1,465,541

(2.101.696)

491.485

8,523,318

2.030.983

(636,155)

19.219.000

(7.361.000)

(1.086,104)
(3.857,793)
{204.673)
(415.715)

(5.006,521)
(2.590.782)

8,014,558 14,126,959

491,485

491,485

021/22

771,168

8.248.764

342,523

{181.350)

(1.146.564)

2.019.932

3235000

161173

19,803,000

(7.298,000)

(950,452)

(100.000)
243.213
(193,033)

(5.551,886)
(4.242.098)

(1. 1as.564 |

{1,148,

|
|

L]



-3l Cost of Services on Continuing Operations
I-) General power of competence

Pilor fo Local Government Raform on 1st Agnil 2015, expenditure for special purposes was limited under Sactlon 40 of the Local Government Finance Act
(Northern Ireland) 2011, This section was repecied by Schedude 10 of the Local Government Act (Norihem {retond) 2014,

Under Section 79 of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014, the Council has the power to do anything that individuols generally may do.
Counclls have the power to do this with ar without charge. The pawer of competence is not limited ta benefitting the area or s residents nor Is it linifed
by existing powers.

There was no expenditure under the general power of competance (Nil In 2021/22).

3 External Audit Fees

The Councll has incurred the following costs relating to the annual audit of the Statement of Accounts, cartification of grant claims and other servicas
provided by the Council's external auditors.

2022/23
Performance Audif Fees = 22,000 22,000
Notional Fraud Infiahive (NFI) Aucit Fees 1.314

104,314 97,000

The Councll hos leased out property to Banbridge Enterprise Limited con a finonce lease with a remaining term of 85 years.

The present value of lease paymentis recetvable under the finance lease arrangaments is recognlsed as a recelvable and Included in both short and
long term debtors. The difference between the gross amount receivablle and the present value of the amounts recelvable is recognlsed as uneamed
finance income.

Tne mininnum lease payments comprise setiement of the long-term debtor tar the interast in the property acquired by Ihe lessee and linance Incoma
that will be eamed by the Councll in fulure years whila the debtor remains outstanding. The gross investment is made up of the following amounts

Current | 966 | 950
MNon-current 112,518 113,483

regsirmant in ihe b

wiklrmand i 1ha Le

2 13 March !
rg e L
Not later than one year 66 959 966 959
Later than one year and not later than five years 3.936 3.906 3.936 3.904
Later thon flve yaars 108,582 109.577 108.582 109,577

The unguaranteed resldual values of the assets leased under finance leases Gt the end of the year are estimated at £nll (Previous year £nil).

The accumulated allowance for uncollectable minimum lease payments receivable is Enil (comparative year Snil).

The inferest rate Inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract date for the entire lease term. The average Interest rate contracted & approximotely 0.73%
(comporative year 0.73%).

FL ]



The Councll, In accordance with its statutory and discretionary responsiblities. leases out property and equipment under operating leases for the
following purposes:

- for the provision of community services, such as sports facllifies, tourism services ond community centres

- for economlc development purposes to provide sultable-affordable accommaodation for small lacal businesses

- any other purposes

Rental income recognised in the CIES In the current year amounts to £630.067 (2021/22 €514,233).

The lease confracts are all non-cancellable and do not Include on extension option, The lease terms are between 1 and 17 years. Future minimum lease
Incoma Is st out below:

J1st Mc_uch 2023 S5t March 2022
Mol Iater fhan 1 year -
Later than ! year and no later than 5 yeors
Later than § yaars

I 187 288

A number of Councll's vehicles were held under finance leases. The assets are Included under Vehicles, Plant & Equipment which form an Infegral part of
propeity. plant and equipment (see note 11g-{ecsad assals),

The vehickss and equipment acquited under these leases were carried in the Balance Sheet at the following net amounts:

The Councll is commitied to making minimum payments under these leases comprsing settlernent of the long-term llabllity for the Inferest in the property
acquired by the Council and finance costs thal will be payable by the authorlty In futura years while the liabllity remains outstanding. The minimum lease
payments are made up of the following amounts:

Finance leases llabllifies {net present value of minimum lease payments):
Current
Non- Current

nimrrm Lacsa Paymenls

The minfmum lease payments will be payable over the following perlods:

PR LeCi5a F'r:'r'rr':_'-r'l-_: Laaze Leabikles
" ey

Naot later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years



The Councll has acquired photocoplers and land under operating leases.
The future minimum lease payments dus under non-cancellable leases In future years are:

Nol later than 1 year I 60,528 60,345
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 45,447 44,700

Later than 5 years 431.233 347.877

The expanditure charged to the Business Change line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year in relation 1o these
leases was:

L1 N |1 11

Y o
Texla 155,981

Coshs and Mambes Alowancas
a
35.127.916
mployers NIC 3.802.180 3.132.954
Employers Superannuation 7.512.388 6,797,517

51,057,270

In addlfion. agency costs duling the year amaunted to £241.356 (2021722 £694.520). Investiment salary expenses of £27.387 Is Included in both the salary
note above and the expenses In note 11e

The Councll's current contribution rate to NILGOSC scheme Is 19.5%,
At lost actuarial valuation dated 31st March 2022 there was a surplus of £1,004.4m relofive to the liabliities. The funding level was 111%.

Average Numbar of Employeas - whara FTE represents ullliime equivalent employees

[s] Average ber ¢ ployeea
Community & Growth 294 )
Deputy CED & CEQ 102 95
Nelghbourhood Services 765 Th8
Stratagy & Performance kX] 32

Fuil-lme numbers employed
Part-time numbers armployed | 427 | 399

[ Senic Empioyees Remuneralicn

E50,001 to E&0,000 _
50,001 to £/0,000 14 0
70,001 to TEO000 ] 3
280,001 1o 52,0000 .
IE50,001 to £100.000 4 3
[£100.007 to £110.000 T .
€110,001 To £120.000 i G
£120.001 1o £130.000 I 1




o I

Mayar's & Deputy yl_gyors Allowance 28.764 28.225
E ial Respansibllity Allowances 116,943 107.406
Depandents' carears allowance 419 -
[Empilayer costs 210.950 198,564 |
Mileage 13,744 10.588
Conferances and Courses 21.146 7.453
Travel & Subsistence Costs 578 1.185
Miscellanaous Cosls -
985142

'] Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension Arrangements

As arasult of Reform on Vst Aprll 2015, staff fronsferred from Central Govermnment to the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension
Scheme,

The Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension arrongements are uniunded mulll-employer defined benefit schemes but the Department for Communities is
unable to identify its share of the underying assets and liobilities. The most up to dote actuarlal valudation was carrled out as at 31 March 2016. This
valuation is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated to reflect current conditions and rolled forward 1o the reporting date of the DOF
Superannuation and Other Allowances Rasource Accounts as at 31 March 2023,

For 2022723, employers” contiibutions of 406,017 were payable to the NICS penslon arrangements ot one of four rates In the range 28.7% to 34,2% of
penstonable pay. based on salary bands.

The scheme's Actuary reviews employaer contributions every four years foltowing a full scheme voluation. A new scheme funding vatuation bosed on
data as at 31 March 2016 was completed by the Actuary during 2019. The contribution rotes are set to meet the cost of the benefits accurlng durng
2022/23 1o be paid when the mamber refires. and not the beneflis paid during this period to existing pensionars,

During the year 12 officers refited sory on lll-health grounds at nil cost to Councll.



.3 Othar Operaling Income & Expendilure
/] Surplus/Deficil on Non-Current Assets {(excl Investment Properties)

i F]

Proceeds from sale (2.101.696) (181.350] |
Carmdng amount of non-current assels sold (excl Investment Properties) 1,465,541 342,523

{634,155) 161,173

[ Crtvar Cpesaling Expendilule 22

rolus) / Deficit on Non Current Assets 161073

{635,155) 161,173

LAl Fincncing and Investment Income and Expendiiure
[s] Interast Payable and Similar Charges

S0 20

2

Lease/hire purchase interest
Bank Interest 10.521 9028
Government Loan Interest 2,406,261 2,563,485

15 Interast and Invesimant income

Bank Interest 353.305 9,827
[Employee cor loan interest -
MNIHE Loan interest receivable 81,762 90,666
Invesiment income on Fund Balances

Other Investment income 2.214 1,262

437,281 101,755
[+ Pensions interest costs and expected relurn on pensions ossets

20

Neat interest on the net defined benefit liabllity (assetl)




[+ Incarme, Expandibing and chandges i Foi # Invesinent Proparbas

2032723

Net Income frorm investment properties
Changes in Falr Vaolue of Investment Properties

d Investment Incor

51088 )
£ L [l

intarest Payable and Similar Charges 2.417.182 2,417,182 2.572.513 o 2,572,513

Interest and Investment Income (437.281) {437,281} - {101.755) {101,755)
Pensions interest cost 1.927.000 - 1,927.000 2.155,000 - 2,155,000
Other invastment Income 59.3562 (345,393) (286,041} 67.286 {340,864} (473,578}
Changes In Fair value of Investment

Propeities . (55.000) (55.000) - (85,0001 {85,000)

4,403,534 (837,674) 3,565,860 4,794,799 (527,619) 4,267,180

LIUBN Toxation and Non Specific Grant Incame
Bioomocons R —

F 021733
&

(6.283.81 1 [ {8,301,845)

General
Other

(6,283,811} {8,301,8465)
[ Copital Grants and Donated Assets - Applied
7] 33 R

Gemmelher rants Cndlﬂons met and applied in year

(1,086,5104) (950,452)
[ Capitcl Grents - Unopplied

Govarnment & Other Grants - Conditions met and not applied in year (3.857.793)

{3,857,793) {100,000}
Sosrceore

2022/23 2021/22

District Ratas (73.114,735) (70.733,356)

{73,116,735) (70,733,356)

axation and No P a ome G 0
District Rate Income (73.116.735) (70.733.356)
IRevenue Grants (6.283.811) (8.301.8465)
Capital Grants and Confributions (4.943.897) (1.050.452)

(84,344,443) (80,085,673}



615'526'692

ooL'9r6’t

1Z9'¥S6°L

86£%20°092

0LL'see's

LES'PIP'E

9€5'6091

988'P69°61

r61'782'8

SiF'6re'9LL

000961 '9v

£20Z Y2IDN L€ D SO a0uDjng

3OS 10} PIBH
(Hoy / (H)o} pelIsSDIDS,

000'08Z

000'59L'e

(000'589'2)

(+0c'0e0"1}

(e0e'895°1}

Z0e'6L8

(G69°51E)

(000°9rS)

SI9JSUDI] % SUOHDIYSSOIISY

18YLO - uouBooalaq

0s8'cLL'D

{000'ERs)

(069°0€2' 1)

(0ez'0se)

©1z'oow

(osv'o8)

s|psodsi] - uoyuBosaian

SHMNISG
JO UOISIACL] B4} Uo Jioyaq
10 sMiding 03 jusuinoduy

(£50°50P)

Geavol)

(811'012)

[GoveD

(rLt'zed

(609>

(o68°21)

saoIMes

$O UOISINGIH B4} U0 JyeQ
1o sniding o4 (sesuaioap)
/S8SD8IDUI USHONOASY

olo'ors'y

(596820’

SL6'E9S'L

0000l

(gre'ecd)

S6Lv09'L

zzresl

anatay
UoYDNIOASY O} (SB5081080)
/5880812U1 UOUONDASY

SUOUDUCO

995'F88's

0
Q
@

002'84L°C
0v0

BGE09

o
o
G

SUOIUPDY,

Jusumdunfuoynioeidep
B SNDA/ISOD
Uaamaq sjuswsnipy

988'66L 652

000'eRd

129'PSeL

S9T'206'052

oroese'e

L08°659L 1

PLEEPE'E

089'881°691

8ZE965"F

Z20Z ludy | |o 50 eduD|pg

= U0

€202 HOUVYI L J3AN3I dVv3A IHL 304
SjuswWe)Dig [CIDUDUlY 8} O} S8JON
[12une: ybnosog ucanbinin g ebpuquog ‘Al ybouny



686°61L'21

 PITE

18

LEBPLs’LL

£Z0Z UDD [€ 1O SD 85UDIDE

£20Z YD 1 £ 0 S0 8aouUD|og

2105 30} PIeH o
UOUDINSSDIDS] UD PajouUnLIg

-

SI19J5UD]] % SUOHDOSSDRS

19410 - uolpuBooeleq

(6¥e'80s)

6re'ens)

(6re'800)

sposedsiq) - uoywuBooelag

SBOIAISS JO UOISIADI]
8y} uo yopeq Jo sniding oy
§IOs1aA8./58550) Juauundury

BAIBTDY UOHONDASY O}
5|0518A81/59550] Jueunoduly

SOMAIDG

JO UCISINDId B4} UO poiaq Jo
SNing 0} U} UOYONDASY
LB N0 IR0 IO DENCED ]

(201'90£'9)

(zZoL'90£'9)

0o0ered

(Zroeee's)

BAIas3}| UoLDNIDASY|
Uo JNe usHum uoymiseidag

SeT'ELL'E

S9T'ELl'E

BLLOE

SROFLFL

0R0ere

CPOESE?

abioyny uoyoaidag
0 dy 0 SD J

Juaumpduw/uoyoiseidep
% SNOA/ISOD
ugsmisa gususnicey |

geLiss'n

el

siLges’ll

026'95S

61992711

TZ0Z (udy | j0 so eduD|og




8|05 10} pleH|
(+1i0y f (-10) PaEssD D8

(gz1gEL)

8zZ1'gel

£98°907°1

(s0965° 1)

SELPLL

@816

SIBISUDI| ¥ SUCLDOYISSD|DS

1BUIO - woubooasag

(ers061°2)

(00008

(eve'0zL'2)

(eva0zL'D)

spsodug - uoubodaiaq

SSIASS
1O UCISIAOIG 84} U Jolje]
10 sncing o) Jusuancdw)

(891'959)

(891'v58}

(ETE19)

000

(Sv/'vap)

$82IAI85

10 USISINGIE B4} UO polag
10 snicing 0} sesnarnep
[S3E0BIOUI UOYONDASY

FaL'2e0's

BZII9L

959142V

Q53 Pep

QzLveL)

9ZT'LELE

BAIBSBY UOYDNDASY
0} 585081080 /SS5DBIoUI
UOIDNIDADY

SUOOUOQ

9vZ'L80'L

0L9°£997C

QserLCe

gOLwLL

gto'oro’L

SUOHIPPY

usupdwifuoupineidap
% ANOAJISOD

000'06¢

21050Y 10}

| ZFPSE'L

play siassy  abojuay

004°60r 9L

A E——) -
juswdinby  says Iypusy

[}

EVS'8LSTol




8

0Z5'S0Z'LSE  DOL'9Pé’L 1S5'S18°L  698'EVP'ivE  0LL'5CR'C LE6'POV'E FEV'C00° SS0'0ZLL vat'vaz's QLY Evs'9L ) 000'961°'9%  €20Z URIDW LE §9 SD 8duUpjDg

l0£'8ER'LPT  QOOEVS ISS'G1R'.  0S1'DBD'SEZ  000'0SE'S 0r0'sSZ'e FL9'ESD’L AN YA VLE'ErE'R 089881 691 BZE'QLS Y ZZOT UDIOW LE YO SO dDUD|DY

$eN|PA Yoog jeN
SR1 19811 (0L 5112281 61997 L1 1z 42I0W £ 40 50 8

z : = T 2 - - - - - 3J0§ J0) PIEH O}
UONDDYSSO|D8) UG PSouUILg

E - SIBJSUD.| 3P SUOYDIIYSSOIDSY

. 5 3 . : : = z 2 . 18410 - UolluBooateg
wzv'ers'D | - - zveveny | - : - eveved | - . - sipsodsiq - uoHUBossIsq
" y 7 - - F= g - - - - - $O2IAIES JO UOKIADIG

S} U0 Joned 10 smding of
$IDSISAS) [$8550| Juaunnduw||

= o = - - - - . - - - SAID59) UOYONIDAS} 0}
S|IDSISAS)/58550| JusunDdw)|

. - - - - - - . . E SOINES
JO UOINIAGIG B} LU0 Joye(] 10
sMAING 04 USHYD} UODNDASY

L0 INC LS ¢
(685'900°L) - . {685'900°2) - P - E: {SoL9LEd (PEP'069'9) BAIBSaY uoUDNDASY|
| | UO JNO U Uoyoioaidag

roL'ave's E 1 yoLeve'e H - [PAN.4 PO0'241°L s coLeLe 0699 = 8bioy uoyorosideq
- . . - - - - - - . . awioduwn/uoyoaidap

B SNDA/ISOD

_ usamiaq sjuaLsnipy|

0Er'L9G72L - 0L0°6E1L opeeerelL - = ovL'S0S 1192261 - i g * 1202 udy jo SO 83UD|Dg

IS jusudingy 585 |

M 3%8dd - EHID USLjH




Armagh Clly, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Councit
Notles to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Impairment

Council has no Impalment for 2022/23.

Revaluations

The last valuoation of freehold and leasehold properties was carrled out as at 31 March 2023 by an Independent valuer from Land and
Property Services (LPS). Please refer to Note 1o(xx) for further information on revaluation and depraciation policies. Assets included In the
Balance Sheset of falr volue are revalued on a 5 year rolling bosls proposed at 20% of assets being sublect fo a physical valuation each
year and the remaining 80% having a desktop revaluation canled out. The cument Instruction for 22/23 instigates the first of the rolling
programme to ensure that by the end of the five year cycle 100% of assets will have been physically inspected (in line with relevant NI
Assembly and PHA regulotfions and guidonce). increases in valuations are matched by credifs to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise
unrealised gains. However, gains ore credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemeant where they arise from the reversat
of aloss previously charged to a service.

Intfangible Assets, which relate solely to.market ights, were also valued by LPS as at 31 March 2019,

A range of categories of heritage assets held af vartous councll locations Including FE McWiliam Gallery and Studie. the Civic Bulldings andl
same Town Halls were vaolued as at 31 March 2019,

Non-operafional Property, Plant and Equipment (Sumplus Assets)

The Councll holds a number of non operational properties included under Surplus Assets in note 11.

The Council also owns Intangible Assets which relate solely to market rights. The ossets are not amorised.

Balance at start of year:
Gross carnying amounts 10,000 10,000
Accumulated amortlsation -
Net carying amount at start of year 10,000
ket carrying amount at end of year
Comprising:
Gross canmylng amounts

ble Assals 3170372023 31/03/2022

Market Trading Rights ' ' 10,000

10,000 10,000




The folowlng items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing ond Investiment Income and Expenditure line In the
Comprehensive Income ond Expenditure Statement:

Rental Incoms from Investrent Activities 345,393 340,864
Direct Oparating expenses arlsing from Investment properties (59.352) (67.286)
Net gain/(loss) 286,041 273,578

The Councll investment properties consist of shop units and offices.

Invastrment properly salary expenses of £27,387 Is included In both the expenses above ond Salary note 70.
The following table summartes the movement In the falr value of Investment properties over the year:

Balance ot start of the yeor
[Additions - . -
Dispasals - B
(Net gains/losses from falr value odustments 55,000 85,000
Transfers to/ frorn proparty, plant and equipment {280.,000) -
Other changes - .
Batance ot end of the yaor 3,130,000 3355 000

Valuation process for Investment Properias

The fair value of the Counclil's Investment property is measured annually af each reporting date. All valuations are carried out intermally, in
accordance with the methodoiogles and bases for estimate set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Charered
Surveyors.

[ Hanilags Asse

A range of cotegorles of Herlfoge assets held at various councll lzcatlons including FE McWilllam Gallery and Studio, the Civic Bulldings and
some Town Halls were last valued as at 31 March 2019,

Other heritage asset disclosuras are Included atf note 1a(od).

g Long-Term Assets - Leased Assets

Cost or Valuation

At 1 Apiil 2022 73,985 7.000 80,985
Additions - . -
Disposals (24,079 - (24,079)
At 3t March 2023 49,906 7,000 56,906
Deprecialion

At 1 Aprii 2022 72528 7,000 79,528
Disposals (24.079) 5 (24,079)
Provided for year 1.457 - 1,457
Al 31 March 2023 49,906 7,000 56,906
Net Book Value - - -




Vehicles Equipment TOTAL
£ g ]

Cost or Valuation
At 1 Apri 2021 276,775 7.000 283,775
Additions - - -
Disposals {202,790) (202,790)
At 31 March 2022 73,985 7,000 80,985
Depraclation
Al 1 Aprll 2021 245.151 5880 251,031
|Disposals (174,080 = (174,080)
Provided for yeor 1,457 1120 2,577
Al 31 March 2022 72,528 7,000 79,528
Net Book Value 1,457 - 1,457

h Fair Value Hierarchy for Surplus Assels
Valuation Process for Surplus Assels
The falr value of the Council’s Surplus Assets is measured annually by external valuers. All valuotions were earied out externally by Land &

Property Services, In accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out In the professional standards of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

-3 Copital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The total amount of capltal expenditure Incurred in the year is shown In the table below (including the value of assets acquired under
leases and PFl conracts), together with the resources that have been used to finance i. Where capltol expenditure Is to be financed In
future years by charges 10 revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure resulfs in an increase In the Capltal Financing
Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure Incurred historically by the Councll that s yet to be financed. The CFR is onalysed
in the second part of this note

X

101,599.14% 103,640,156

Oponing Capital Financing Requirement

Capital Invesiment

Property. Plant and Equipmeant 1 5,864,566 7.087,246
Investment Properiies ! =2 2
lIntangible Assets ] i -
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capilial under Statute 2030983 3035010

Sources of Finance

Copllal Receipts Eis - E 26 - (181 .35"07{
Government Grants and Other Conlributions 110 (1.086.104) (950.452)
Unopplied Capltal Grants transferred to CAA In year 27 {306,876) (920.337)
Trarsfers from Earmarked Reserves ) 2 - (517.139)
Sums sof aside from Revenuo: |

Direct Reverue Contribufions e [2.59%0.782) [4,242.098) |
Minimunn Revenue Provision ) (5.606,521) (5,551,886)

Closing Capity Cir virerneant 99,924,415

Explanalion af Movameants in Yaor

2022/23

&

Incregse In underlying need to borrow {14674, 734)

Increase/(deciease) in Copital Financing Reguirement [1,674,734)

{2,041 ,004)




Fulure Copital Commitmenis

The Council has an ongolng programme of capital works ond the estimated cost of the schamas is gs follows:

Schemas underway af year end amounted to £6.6m, the majority of wich relate to the delivery of grant funded projects Including
Banbridge Public Realm, Diomore Bridges. and Amnagh and Lurgan Heritage Schemas

|Stores
|Other Stock
1

The cost of Inventones wiitten down,

recognised as an expense and Included in ‘services’ amounted to £2,292.32.

BT



Other Counclis

Public corporations and trading funds

Bodles external to general govemment =
|Employee cor loons

Revenue Grants

Capiltal Grants

Interest Receivable [
Copltal Debtors o -
Loans ond advances - -
Lease debtors 112,518 113.484
Trade debiors -
NIHE Loans 776,411 898,829
Other 17,134 21,191
Impairment of 10ans and receivables - -
Contract Receivables -

b
Government Depariments 3 3,554,030 6,934,488
Cther Councils 252,101 103.656
Public corparations and trading funds 2
|Bodles externoi to general government 747,389 403,137
INTHE loans - 122417 125,786
Employee car loans = -
Revenue Grants 1.854.736 942,148
Capltal Grants BAE,970 847.781
Interest Recelvable = 60,547 3.723
Capital Dabtors - -
Volue Added Tax 1,722,504 1,271,349
Prepoyrnents 552.599 425,749
Leose debfors 966 959 |
Other N 41,365 6,466
Trade receivables 686,184 989.128
impairment loss - Trade recetvables (207,437 (183.809
Coniract Recelvables - &
'} Dab 0 3 s

Tetal Debtors 11,159,434 12,904,065

fs] Lo

investrments - general

Investments - repalrs and renewals

Investments - capital fund

Investments - other

Tealal Lang-lenm Invesimanls

Analysad owver

Money market deposits

Cther deposits

Tatal Lorg-lamm Invesiments



Invesiments - general

Investments - repairs and renewaqls

Investments - capital fund

Investments - other

Mongy market deposits

Other deposifs

Total Long Term and Short-term Investments

Note: Short term investments are Included within Cash and Cash Equivalents

Loans re-payable within one yeor

Finance lease Principal

10,000,000

10,000,000

Between 1 and 2 years 3.279.700

Between 2 and § years 10,267,568 10,622,076
[Bstween 5 and 10 years 15463794 15.389.211 |
In more than 10 years = 22.487.506 26,487,281 |

Government Loans Fund

51,498,568

56,765 860

Total Borrowing 56,745,840 64,985,544
18 e
[s] 5ho =
Government Deparments =7 867.281 1,095,429
Othar Councils 243,386 145,407
VAT ] 287,387 321,312
Remuneration dus 1o employees 428,677 459,528
Accumulated Absences | 1,005,394 1,210,067
Recelpis In advance 1.556.701 923,457
Other 6,939,259 6,939,807
03 0¥35, (6]



[ Frovvisions

[+] Leng Tanm Craddons

Other credions falling due after more than one year

Government Departrments . -
Other Counclls ) - -
Public corparations and trading funds ] - -
Bodlies external 1o general govemment - -
Rates clawback

Remuneration due to employees
Accurmulated Absences . ] -
Recelpts In agvance - -
Trade creditors . : E
Other i 70887 T |
[Contract Payables -

To'al Long Tetm Creditors

Total Creditors 14,356,974 11,124,896

[l Payment of Invoices

The council has a target. where no other terms are agreed. of paying supplier involces within 30 calendar days. Durng the year the
Council paid 22,666 Invoices tofalling £55,463,3463. (2021/22 21,712 Invoices totalling £52,114,176).

The number of disputed involces wera 214,

The Councll paid:

21,457 (94.7%) involces with 30 calendar days target; (20,659 (95.2%)-2021/22)
15,408(68%) Involces within 10 working days target: (11,957 (55.1%)-2021/22)
1.209(5.3%) Invoices outside of the 30 day target; (1,053 (4.8%)-2021/22)

The average number of days faken to pay suppllers during the year was 10.14 days. (10.76 days 2021/22)

|
Landfiil CIosure-Crochvon 1.%5,33?_i_ = _ﬂs, 186) - - (545,632 1,345,519
Single Status 21’"2‘,‘&54’_ 34,043 - - - 306,738
Legal lssuas 1,455,623 | 09°.418 £50.000) (175.000) - 2,140,041
(546,632} 3,792,298
Current Provislons 272,695 34,043 - - - 306,738
Long Term Provisions 3,420,560 836,232 (50.000) (175.000) (545,632) 3,485,560

Tota! 3,693,655 870,275 (50,000) (175,000) (544,432) 3,792,298

Comparative Year

Inl@fast cost
£ and/or discount

rale ehanges

Landfill Closure-Craigeavon ,487, (137,903 1,965,337
Single Status 500.183 (227.488) | = - - 272,695
iLegallssues 1,909,530 196,093 = {650.000) - 1,455,623

-[Current Provisions 500.183 (227,488) - - - 272,695
Long Term Provisions 4,397.348 58,190 (191.545) (650,000) {193,033) 3,420,960

4,897,531 (149,298) (191,545) (650,000) (193,033 3,693,655



Landiill Closure- Craigavon

NI Environment Agency required that an adeguate provision is made for londfill aftercare costs. This was formally revaiued in 2019/20 by an
external compony to ensure that the provislon is an adequate estimate for the landfil cost llability.

Buring 2017/18 the Councll sought Indepsndent external professional advice from Its financial advisors, Arlingciose regarding discount rates
for landfill. Based on the aadvice provided, discount rates based on PWLB barrowling rafes factored for Inflation have been applied. These
have been updated for 2022/23 rates. The movement relating to the discount rates has been mitigated via the Provision Discount Rotes
Rasarves In the unusable resarves in Note 27h.

Single Status

This provision is set aslde fo provide for costs assaciated with a review of salarles and wages. This process shouid be completed during the
2023724 financlal year.

Legal Issues

The provislon ks set aside for potential legal costs and repayment claims that are curently on-gaing.

20 T
The Council has no material exposure to any of the risk types identified below In its dealings with Financlal Inskurments.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial Institutions. as well as credit exposures to the Council's customers. A collective
assassment of the outstanding debt balances, was complsted based on the Counclls credit control procedures and an dllowance for
Imparment loss for lrade recelvablas has been Included.

Liquidity Risk .

As the Council has ready access to borrowings fram the Department of Finance's Consolldated Fund, there is no significant risk that it will be
unable 1o roise finance to mest its commitments under Financial Instrurnents. The maturity anolysis of financlal labiiities is included in notes
i6to 18. All trade and other payables are due for payment within one year.

Interast rate risk

The Council is exposed to risk in ferms of s exposure 1o Interest rate movements on its investments and deposits but the potential risk and
exposure Is minimal during 2022/23. The Councll ks In receipt of loans from the Department of Finance, however these loans are at fixed
concessionary Interest rates that differ from the prevatling maorket rates

Interest Rate Banchmarking
Tne Councll has considered Interest Rate Benchmarking and considers there Is no impact on payments, cash or fair values on Councl loans
or confracts.

Foreign Exchonge Risk
The Councll has a Euro bank account for payments however due to the size of the bank balance this would not be considered a materal
exposue to loss arking from movements In exchange rates.

Falr Value of Soft Loans and Governmaent Loans
The Councli Is in recelpt of loans from the Department of Finance and other lacal authaiities ot concessionory Interest rates that differ from
the prevailng market rates. The fair value of these loans is £53,103.379 broken dawn as fallows:

€
Long ferm Govemment Loans 48,995,901
Short Term Local Authority Loans -
Market Loans 4,107,478
Total 53,103,37¢%

The falr value of these Izans Is not included In the provision of services.
The Councit made a loan to an organisation at less than market rates (soft locins). Thus the fair value of the loan would be |ess than the
amount of the cash lent. The fair value ks included below, however the amount foken 1o the provision of services Is Immaterial.

Voluntary Body in Receipt of Loan Amount Amount
£ %

2022/23 2021722

i Business Centre

91



P Ratitement Benetits
-] Participation in the Northern Ireland Lecal Government Clficers’ Pansion Fund.

As part of the terms and condifions of employment of lis officers and other emplayees. the Councll offers retirement benefits. Although
these benefits will not actually be payable untl employees refire, the Councll has a commitment to make the payments that need to be
disclosed at the time that employeas earn their future entilernent.

The Council participotes in the Northem lreland Local Government Officers’ Penslon Fund administered by the Northern Ireland Local
Govemment Officers' Supsrannuation Commiftee. This s a funded scheme, meaning that the Council and employees pay confibutions Into
a fund. calcuioted at a level Intended to balance the pension’s liabllities with investment assets.

-] Transactions relating to relirement benetits - Cemprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Charges:

The Council recognises the cost of retirement bensfits In the Cost of Services on Continuing Operotions when they are eamed by
employees, rather than when the benefifs are eventually pald as pensions

However, the charge the Councl is required to make against distiict rates ks based an the cash payable in the year, and the real cost of
refirerent benefits is reversed out In the adjustments between accounting basis & funding basls under regulations line, In the Movement on
Reserves Statemant,

The following transactions have been made In the Comprehensive Income and Expendifure Statement and the adjustments between
accounting basls & funding basls under regulations line, in the Movernent on Reserves Staternent during the year:

Net cost of services: A [y
Current sewvice cost R 17,292,000 16,822,000
Past service cosﬂgaln} s v - — 826,000

Net Interest on net defined benefit Uabllty (assety 1,927,000 | 2,155,000

Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the Surptus or Deficit on the Provision
of Services 15,219,000 19,803,000

Moverent in Reserves Statement:

Reversal of net charges made for retiremeant benefits In accordance with 1AS 19 H| R

and the Code | [ (19.219.000 (19.803.000)
Actual amount charged against the general fund balance for pensions Iin the E

\rear: |

Employers' contributions poyable to scheme : 7.361.000 7,298,000

djusiment 1o Ganemal Fund

The service cost figures Include an altowance for adminisiration expenses of £0.187m,
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nts racognised in Cthey Camprehensive Income

Liabllity gains/fosses) due to chonge In assumptions (155,231,000} (26,311.000)
Liabliity gains/osses) due to dus to demographic changes | 1,449,000 {3.610,000)
Liablity experence gains/{losses) arlsing in the year 29.690.000 814,000
Achuarlal gains/{losses) on plan assets 34,983.000 {14.581,000)
Ciher 3 -

Ensive Inco

Bolonce as ab 1 Aprll : ; 357,681,000 365,240,000
{Current service cost 17,292,000 16,822,000
[Interest cost ©.588.000 7.633,000

Contributions by members 2,396,000 2,061,000

Remeasurement (galns} and losses:

Actuariol gainsfiosses ansing from changes in financial assumptions* (155,231,000) (26,311,000
Actuariol gains/losses arsing from demographic changes 1,445,000 (3.610,000)
Actuarial gainsflosses arlsing on llabliities frorn experience 29,690,000 814,000
Other (If applicable) I E -

Past service costs/igalns) : - - 826,000

Estimated unfunded benefits pald (86,000) 89.000)

Estimated benefils paid d {7.631,000} (5.705.000)

clalion of presant volug of Ihe 3chams ofsols 2022723
£
Balance as at 1 Apiil 282,630,000 __255.006,000
Inferest Income " 7.661.000 [ 5,478,000
Confributions by members ~ 2.396,000 2,061,000
Contributions by employer Rre) 7,275,000 7,209.000
Confrlbutions In respect of unfunded benefits ; 86000 | 89,000
*Remeasurement gain/{loss} = - (34,983.000) 14,581,000
Unfunded bensfits paid {86,000) | (89,000}
Bensfits paid oo - (7,631.0000 (5,705,000}

257,348,000 A2 &30, 000

The expected return on scheme assets s determined by considering the expected retums avallable on the assets underlying the current
investment policy. Expected yields on fixed Interest invastrents are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date.
Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of refurn experienced in the respective markets.

The actual return on scheme assets in the yeor was a loss of £27.322m (2021/22 gain of £20.059m).

“The movement in the "Remeasurement gains and losses" above has been largely attrlbuted to the change In financlal assumptions over
the period. The discount rate hos Increased by 2.00%, the CPI Inflation assumption has reducead by 0.3% and the salary increase assumption
has reduced by 0.3%. This has resulted in a more positive Balonce Sheet position than If the financlal assumptions at the start of the year
position had besn used. The impact of this change has created o positive £2.2m Pension Bolance In the Unusable Reserves compared with
the deficlt balance in 2021722 of (£75.051m).

Fair Value of Plan Assef

Equity Investments 102,939.200 121,248,270

Bonds ”"_'" 60.734.128 76,027,470
Property 28,822,976 28,263,000
Cash 16.727.620 11,305,200
Other 48,124,076 45,786,060

Tha above asset valuas are at bid valug os required by 1AS 19,

Details of astimates made by the Fund Manager when assessing the fair volues of plan assets
The amounts Included In the fair value of plan assets for property occupied by the Council was nil.

a3



The Council's share of the Net Pension Liabllity (included in the Balance Sheet):

o Habiklias

Fair Value of Assets In pension scheme

257,348,000

Fair Valug of Ermployer Assets 257,348,000 282,630,000
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation (254,203,000) (356,630,000}
Pension assel/(lability) of Funded Scheme 3,145,000 {74,000,000)
Present Value of unfunded dafined banefit obllgoﬂon — {945.000) (1,051.000)
Net asset/(tiability) arising from the defined benefii abligation 2.200.000 {75,051.000)
Arnount in the Balance sheet:

Assets 2,200,000 (75,051,000}

282,630,000

Present Value of Defined Beneflt Obl'gouon

(2565.,148,000)

(357.681.000)

2,200,000

Surplus/(deficlt) in the Scheme

Amount recognizad in Qiher Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure:

(75,051,000)

Actuarial gains/{losses) 124,092,000} (29, 107,W_L
Expacted Retumn on Plan Assets 34,983,000 {14,581,000)
Remeasurements recognised In Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (89.109,000) {43.688,000)
Curmulative actuarial gains and osses - (%2.261,000) (3.152.000)
History of experience gains and losses: T I

Experience gains and (105ses) on Gssets 34983000 | (14,581,000 |
Experence golns and (losses) on llobillties - 124,092,000) {29.107.000) |

The reserve shows the fund. at a point in time. that the autharity has in the long run to pay retirement benefits. At 2022/23 year end there
was Q surplus fund of £2.2m. The total asset of £2.2m has an impact on the net waorth of the Councll as recorded In the Balance Sheet

However, statutory arangements for funding future benefits mean thot the financial position of the Council remains healthy. The deficit or
surplus on the Northern Irelond Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund will be made good by adjusting contributions over the remaining
working fife of ermployees, assessed by the scheme actuary

Analysis of projected amount to be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement lor the year to 31 March 2024

|Projected cument cost

|Net Interest on the net deflned benefit liablity (asset)

The total contributions expected to be made to the Northem Ireland Local Government Officers' Penslon Fund by the councll in the year to
31 March 2024 Is £7.481rm, of which £0.095m relates to unfunded benefits.



Histary of exparience gains and losses

The actuaial gains/losses identified as movernents on the Pensions Reserve 2022/23 can be analysed into the following categorles.

measured os a percentoge of assets or liabilities at 31 March 2023

Experience gains and (losses) on Assets 13.59% -5.16%
Experience gains and (losses) on Liablities 48.64% 8.14%

b Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabtities have been ossessed on an actuarial basls using the projected unit method, an estimate of the penslons that will be payable in the

future years dependent on assumptions about mortdlity rotes, salary levels, efc. The Council's Fund llablities have been assessed by Acn
Hewlit Limited, an independent firm of actuarles, estimates for the Council Fund belng based on data pertaining to the latest full vaiuation

of the schame as at 31 March 2023

Fension scheme o

Equity investments 0%

Bonds 23.6%

Propady 11.2% I

Cash 6.5% 4.0%

Oither 18.7% 16.2%
Mortality assurmptions:

Longevity at 65 current pensioners: Years Yaars

[Men 22.2 21.8

Women 250 25.0
[Longevity ot 65 for future pensioners: ]
(Men 232 23.2

Women 26,0 264 ]
Infiation/Pension Increcse Rate 2.70% 3.00%

Salary Increase Rate 4.20% 4.50%
Expected Return on Assels 2.90% -2.10%
Discount Rate 4.70% 270% |
Pension accounis revaluation rate 2.70% 3.00%
Take-up of option fo convert annuat pensicn into retirernent Jump sum: .

Service fo Aprll 2009 80% 75%

Service post Aprll 2005 80% 75% =

Pension Assumplions Sensitivity Analysis

The pension figures disclosed in these financial statements are sensitive to the assumptions used,

The approximate Impact of changing key assumptions on the present value (£254.20m) of the funded defined benefit obligation as at 31

March 2023 and the profected service cost (£8.102m) for the period ending 31 March 2024 is set out below,

In each case. only the assumption noted below is altered; all other assumptions remain the sdme ond are summarised in the disclosure

above



Funded Pension Schem: Hl

Discount Rate Assumption

Adustrment 1o discount rate +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.q.

Present value of the totol obligation 249,373,000 259,033,000
% changs In the present value of the total obligation -1.90% 1.90%)
Projected service cost 7,778,000 8,434,000
Approximate % change in projected service cost -4.00%, 4.10%
Rate of General Increass in Salares

Adjustment to salary increase rate +0.1%p.a. =0.1%p.a.

Present value of the tolal obligaticn 254,966,000 253,440,000
|% change in the prasent value of the tatal obligahon 0.30% -0.30%
Projected service cost 8,102,000 8,102,000
Approximate % change in projected service cost 0.00% 0.00%,

[Rate of Increase 1o Pansions In Paymaent and Deferred Pansion Assumption

Adjustment 1o penslon increase rate +0.1%H.a. ~0.1%p.a

Present value of the total obligation 258,270,000 250,136,000

[% change in the present value of the fotal obligation 1.60% -1 .60%,
Projected service cost 8,434,000 7.778,000

Approximate % change in projected service cost 4.10% -4.00%)
[Post Relirement Morality Assumption

Adjustment to morality age rating assumption® -1 Year + 1 Yeqr

Prasent value of the total obligation 261,066,000 247,340,000

[% change in the present value of he total obllgation 2.70% -2.70%
Projected service cost 8,386,000 7,818,000

Approximate % change in projected service cost 3.50% -3.50%

* Arating of +1 year means thot members are assumed ta follow the modality patfern of the bose table above for

vaar older than that.

Ll Major categories of plon assets as percentage of fotal plan assets

an individual that Is 1

The Northern Iretond Local Government Officers' Pension Fund's assets consist of the following categores. by proportion of the total assets
held:

Equity Investmenits Bt A0.00% 42.590r%)
Government Bonds 20.60% 24.70%
|Corporate Bonds 3.00% 2.20%
Property 11.20% 10.00%
ICash 6.50% 4.00%
Other 18.70% 16.20%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

[<] Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension Arrangemants

The Northern Irelond Civil Service Pension arangements are unfunded mult-emplayer defined benefit schemes but the Department for
Communities Is unable 10 Identify s share of the underlying assets and Eabiiities. The most up o dale actuarial valuation waos cairled out as
at 31 March 2016. This valuatian ks then reviswed by the Scheme Actuary and updated to reflect current conditions and rolled forword to
the reporting date of the DOF Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource Accounts as at 31 March 2023.

Li] Cuitent Issues

Cost Management in the LGPS (NI) - Legkslation requires HM Treasury to underiake periodic valuotions to monltor the cost of the LGPS fo
ensure It rernains sustainable and affordable. The outcome of the review relaling to the 2016 valuation recommended no changes to the
provisions of the Scheme. However. the legality of the Government's declslon 1o include McCloud costs as a member cost within the 2016
HMT process is being challenged by o Judicial Review (JR) brought by the trade unions. if the JR Is successful, this may cause the 2016 HMT
process 1o be re-run and cauld result in changes in benefits or mermber contributions backdated to Agril 2019, No oftowance has been

made for this in the above figures



Guaranteed Minimum Penslon (GMP) Is a pertion of pension that was acciued by individudls who were confrocted out of the siate pension
paior o 6 April 1997. It was found that there was an inequality of benefits between male and female members who have GMP. The
Govenment has consutted on its approach to compensote affected members and announced on 23 March 2021 that it would adopt
long term policy of uprating GMP's in line with CPI Inflation for members whose state pension age I on or after & April 2016, This
methodology haos been included in the above figures. The consulation response recognised however that this solutlon will not address all
sex inequalities for the minority of members. Furdher guldance Is expected from Government on how they propose to dea! with this. The
expeciation Is that any remaining sex inequalities will be small and the approach Included within figures above, In line with Government
policy. is a reasenoble estimate.  In October 2020 a second nuling clarified that compensation would be required to members who
transferrad benefits out since May 1990, At this fime Govermment has not yet acknowledged a liability in publle service schemes nor
Indicated an approach to rechify this. The impact of any licbliities cutstonding relating to the Council Is therefore uncertaln and no provision
hns hean macs in thasa inoncial stotamants

Cronalied Az

Openlng balance
Add: new donated assets received (condition of use not met)

Less: amounts releasad to the Distrdet Fund - Compighensive

Analysis of Donated Assets Account

The Council has no donated assets

Capitol Gran

Opaning balance

Add: new capltal grants received in odvance {condition of use not met) -
Tess: amounts @ 54;"533 To fhe Comprenensive Income and Expendifure o

Statement

Anatysis of Capltal Grants Recelpls in Advance Balance

The Councll utiised all Capltal Grants received in year.

In accordonce with the Code (ond 1AS 37). Councis should disclose by way of note if thera Is a possible obligation aiising from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occunence of one of more uncertaln fulure events nat wholly within
the control of the authorty. or a present obligation that arlses from past events but Is not recognised bacause

Q) Itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits ar service potential will be required to setfle the obligation,
or
b) the aomaunt of the abligatian cannot be measured with sufficlent refiabllity.

Contingent Liability

Legat:
The Cauncll has a number of angaing cutstanding legal cases. the cutcomes of which are unclear at this point In time and are difficutt 1o
predict.

Conilingent Asset

Legat:

The Councll, together with the other 10 District Councils In NI, is participating In @ legal action ogainst HMRC 1o recover previously
overdeclared output VAT In respect of leisure and recreational income, which arose because HMRC did not accept that the Council
provides lelsure and recreational activities pursuant to a special legal regirme without causing any significant distortion of competition.
Although Mid Ulster District Councli (s lead councl In the litlgation) succeeded in its clairm fo the First Tier Tox Tribunal. HMRC subsequently,
pursuant to Rule 3% of the Tribunal Procedure (First Tier Tribunal) (Tax Chamber) Rules 2009, lodged an application to appeal to the Upper
Tier Tax Tribunal. The application to lodge an appeal was successful and the appeal was heard by the Upper Tier Trlbunal In May 2022 The
Upper Tier Tax Tribunal released Its declision on 19 July 2022: the declslon was to ollow the appeal and remit the matter back to the First Tler
Tax Tribunal for consideration. Mid Ulster District Councit subsequently sought and received permission to appeal 1he Upper Tier Tax Tribunal
declsion to the Court of Appeal and o Hearlng was scheduled to take place In May 2023, On 26 January 2023, HMRC notified Mid Ulster
District Councl that it daclded to pay all of the Local Authority Lelsure Service claims and proceeded to publish an associated Revenue
and Customs Brief on 3 March 2023. Mid Uster District Council's oppeal 1o the Court of Appeal is currently stayed until 15 September 2023
o allow both parties to time 1o seek a resolution of the matter. If resolution is reached, It wil take time to conclude the matter, alternatively.
If there is no resciution. Mid Ulster District Council shall make application for its appeal to be re-listed for mention. In either cose. at this
stage. If's too early to assess any assoclated financial impact.

a7



Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

LI Other cash flow disclosures
<] Analysis of Adjustments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of services

for noncash movements

Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the
provision of services that are investing and financing

cclivilies

Depreciation 11 8,173,265 8,248,764
Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale
derecognitions) 11 350,053 771,168
Amortisation (included with depreciation above) - =
(Increase)/Decreagse in Inventories 14 (20.886) 36,869
(Increase)/Decrease in Debtors 15 1,721,002 1,732,933
Increase/(Decrease) in iImpalrment provislon for bad
debts 15 23,628 {17.658)
Increase/(Decreaqse) in Creditors 18 (407.836) 1,992,142
Paymenis to NILGOSC 21 11,858,000 12,505,000
Carrylng amount of non-current assets sold 8 1,465,541 342,623
AIC/WIP written off fo Net Cost of Services 11 -
Conftribudions to Other Reserves/Provisions 19 98,645 (1.203.876)
23,261,412 24,407,865

2021722

Purchase of shor-term (not considered to be cash
equivatents) and long-term Investments (includes

investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries)

Proceeds from short-term (not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes

investments in associates, jolnt ventures and subsidiaries)

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property and

intangible assets 8 (2.101.696) {181.350)
Capital grants included in "Taxation & non-specific grant
income" 10 (4,943,897 (1.050,452)




s Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and In bank and short
term deposits and Investments (considered 1o be cash equivalents). net of outstanding bank overdrafts, Cash and
cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown In the statement of cash flows can be reconclled to the

related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

< £ g
Cash and Bank balances 667.852 1,216,817 981,553
Short Term Deposits (considered to be Cash Equivalents) - 2,000,000
Short Term Investments (considered to be Cash
Equivalents) 12,500,000 10.000.000 2,000,000
Bank Overdraft - -

Council holds monies on behalf of Anderson Trust, a third party Coal Fund which Councll administers and makes
annual contributions to the charity on its behalf, As ot 31 March 2023 third party investments folalled £29,889 (2021-22

£29.889) .

Council administers and operates an Oil Stamp Savings Scheme as part of a Public Health Agency funded project in
which retallers supply saving stamps 1o indlvidudls, lodge the funds and Council reimburses the Oll Companles on

redemptton of the stamps.

[ Cash Flow Stalement: Operaling Activities
The cash flows from operating activilles Include:

2022/23

g

202122
g

Interest received

437,281

101,756

Inferest pald

2,417,182

2,572.513

Purchase of PP&E. investiment property and Intangible
assets

(5.244.653)

(8.563.177)

Purchase of Short Term Investments (not considerad to be
cash equivalents)

Purchase of tong Term Investments

Other Paymenis for Investing Activities

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, invesiment property and
intfanglble assets

2,101,696

181.350

Proceeds from Short Term Investments (not considered to
be cash equivalents)

Proceeds from Long Term Investiments

Capital Grants and Contributions Received

0

4,943,897

1,050,452

Other Receipts from Invesﬂng Activities

Net Cash flows from Investing Aclivilies

99

1,800,940

(7,331,375)




[-Y Cash flows from Finoncing Activities

Cash Recelpts from Short and Long Term Barowing

Other Receipts from Financi ng Activities 5
Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liability relating fo o lease and
on-Balance Sheet PFl confracts

Repayment of Short and Long Term Borrowlng (8.219.686) |  (11,503.575)
Other paymenits for Flnonclng Activities £ 5

Met Cash flows from Financing Activities (8,219,686)

b 3l Usable Reserves
[*] Capital Receipls Reserve
Theser are capital receipts which have originated primarily from the sole of assets which have not yet been used to
finance capital expendtture.

The Capltal Recelpts Reserve is credited with the proceeds from flxed asset sales and other monies defined by
statute as capital receipts. These are originally credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as
part of the gain/loss on disposal and posted ouf via the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Capital Recelpts
Reserve. The reserve is wiitten down when resources are applied to finance new capltal expenditure or set aside 1o
reduce on authority's capital financing requirement (or used for other purposes permitted by statute).

£ &
At 1 April - -
Movement
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 2,101,696 181.350
Capltal Receipts used fo finance capital expenditure 12 - (181,350)

Difference between finance and other costs and Income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements

At 31 March 2,101,696

] Capital Grants Unapplied Account
Where a capital grant or contribution (or part thereof) has been recognised as Income in the Comprehensive
Income and Expendlture Statement, but the expenditure to be financed from that grant or confribution has not been
incurred af the Balance Sheet date, the grant or contribution shall be transferied to the Capltal Grants Unapplied
Account (within the usable reserves section of the balance sheet). reflecting its status as a capital resource available
to finance expenditure. This transfer is reparted in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

When, at a futwe date, the expenditure fo be financed from the grant or contribution is incurred, the grant or
contiibution (or part thereof) shall be fransferred from the Capital Grants Unapplied Account to the Capital
Adjustment Account, reflecting the application of capital resources fo finance expenditure. This fransfer is also
reported in the Movernent in Reserves Statement or in the notes to the accounts.
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l.'_'::jlrjm:jif Erants Unopplied account 31/03/2023 31/03 022
[ <
At 1 April 623,717 1,812,332
Movement
Unappliied Capltal Grants received in year 3,857,793 100,000
Inapplied Cagltal Grants fransferred to general reserves = (368,278)
Unapplied Capltal Grants fransferred to CAA In year (306,876} (920,337)

At 31 March

1] Capital Fund

The Capital Fund has been established and earmarked for expenditure within the Capital Programme,

Capital Fund

/0372022

£
At 1 April 3,530,940 3.848.079
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General
|Fund - -
Transfers between Capital Fund & CAA to finance Capifal
|Expenditure 12 (317,139

Al 3] March 3,530,940

£
Analysis
Capital Programme 3,530,940
Total 3,530,940

[.] Other Balances & Reserves

Other Balonces & Reserves IH/03/2023 31/0372022
% £

At 1 April 15,990,102 14,675,260

Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General B

Fund 46 (491,485) 1,146,564

Transfer between capital grants unapplied & other

reserves - 368,278

Transfers between statutory, other reserves, the Capital

Adjustment Account & the Capital Fund - (200,000)

At 31 March

1m

15,498,617

15,990,102




Analysis 3170372023 31/03/2022
g <

Development & Transformation Fund 4,246,977 4,472,746
Investment & Funding Support 3,617,006 4,194,589
*Government Gront Funding & Mid South West City

Growth Deal 4,934,634 5,322,767
Future Committed Considerations 2,700,000 2,000,000
Tolal 15,498,617 15,990,102

* On 27 October 2022, the Department informed councils that it was content that councils can use their COVID-19
DFC reserves to confinue to support the recovery in the context of increased operating costs as a result of the cost-of-
living crisis. The closing balance of the Covid 19 DFC reserve of £2.033M Is included within this figure.

-] General Fund

This reserve shows the accounting cost In the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from District Rates. Councils raise rates to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations: this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is

shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

g [

At 1 Apl 27,754,945 19.880.399
Applied Capital Grants 10, 12 {1,086.104) (950,452)
Unapplied Capital Grants received in year 26b (3.857.793) (100.000)
Direct Revenue Financing 4,12 (2,590,782) (4.242,098)
Depreciation and Impairment adjustment 4 8523318 9,019,932
Statutory Provision for financing Caopital Investment 4 (5,606,521} (5.551,886)
Net Revenue expenditure funded from capltal under
statute 4,12 2,030,983 3.235,010
Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provislon of Services CIES (7.846,038) (5.1056.849)
Transfers between Statutory and Other Reserves and the
S R 4 491,485 |  (1.146,564)
Net movements on Penslon Reserve 4,21 11,858,000 12,505,000
Disposal of Fixed Assets/Capital Sales 4.8 (636,155) 161,173
Difference between finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basls and finance costs
cdlculated in accordance with statutory requirements

27g (204,673) 243.313 |
Other Movements 27h (415715 (193.033)
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F7E Unuseable Reserves
[+] Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from ihe different arangements for

accounting for the consumption of non-current assets-and for the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those
assets under statutory provisions.

The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, Impairment losses
ond amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement, with reconciling postings
from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to an historic cost basls,

The account is credited with the amounis set aslde by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition. construction
and subsequent costs.

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 Aprll 2008, the
date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Capilal Adjusiment Account Motes 31/03/2023 31/03/2022
[ £
At 1 April 52,394.680 49,557,754
Applied Capital Grants 10, 12 1,086.104 950,452
Unoppiled Capital Grants transferred to CAA In year 12 306,876 920,337
Direct Revenus Flncnclng_; 4,12 2,590,782 4,242,098
Depraciation & Impairment adjustment 11 (8.523.318) (9.019.932)
Statutory Provision for financing Capital Investment 4,12 5,606,521 5,551,886
Net Revenue expenditure funded from Capital under 4,12 (2,030,983) (3.235.010)
Disposal of Fixed Asseis/ Capital Sales 4,11 (1.465,541) (272.523)
Revaluation on movement on dispasal 27¢c 982,838
Caplial Receipts used to finance capital expenditure 4,12 181,350
Other Movements 27¢ 3,710,672 3.001,129
Transfers between Capital Fund/Other Reserves & CAA fo
finance capital expendlture 12 - 517.139
At 31 March 54,658,631
] Financial Insfruments Adjustment Account
C 0] f o 0 ote 0 0 D 0
£ £
At 1 Aprll N _
Transfers In / cut on adoption of IFRS? - Financial - - 5
Difference between finance and other costs and income 3

cdlculated on an accounting basls and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements

The Council has no transactions that would require use of this account.
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'+ Revaluation Reserve

The Revaoluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Councll arsing from Increases in the value of Its Property,
Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The reserve is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

- revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
- used in the provision of services and the gains are consurmed through depreciation. or
- disposed of and the gains are realised.

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2008, the date the raserve was created.
Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolldated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

The purpose of this account is to build up a balance based on the revaluation (upwards or downwards) of Individual
assets. All such revaluations (excluding Impairment losses that have been debited to Surplus/(Deficit) on the
Provision of Services) are mirrored In Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. It is o fundamental principle of
this account that it never becomes negative. If an asset was held at current value when derecognised, the balance
held on the Revaluation Reserve Is- written off fo the Caplital Adjustment Account.

[ £
AF 1 April 97,209,873 88,241,629
Revaluation & Impairment 11 13.246,112 12,039,373
Revalugtion movement on disposal 11 - (982.838) (70.000)
Movements from associates & joint ventures -
Other Movements 27a (3.710.672) (3.001,129)

105,762,475 97,209,873

s} Available for Sale Financial instruments Adjustment Reserve and Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve

Councils need to include a note if relevant or state not applicable.

At 1 April - -
Transfers out on adoption of IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments - B
Revaluation & Impairment 11,20 - -

At 1 April z E
Transfers in on adoption of IFRS @ - Financial Instruments -
Revaluation & Impalrment 11, 20 -
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-} Pension Resetve

£ £
At 1 April (75,051,000) | (106,234,000)
Net Movements on Pension Reserve 4.2 (11.858,000) (12,505,000)
Revaluaiion & Impairment 21 82,109,000 43,688,000

At 31 March 2,200,000

{75,061,000)

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arlsing from the different arangements for accounting for post-
employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Council accounts for post-

- employment benefits in the Comphensive Income and Expenditure Statement as benefits are eamed by employees
accrulng years of service, updating the liabllities/assets recognised to reflect inflation, changlng assumptions and
investrnent returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs or benefits.

However, statutory arangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes employer's
contributions to pension funds or evenfuadlly pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The credit balance
on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a surplus in the benefits eamed by past and current employees and the
resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been
set aside by the time the benefits come to be pald.

|l Deferred Capital Receipis Account

The Deferred Capital Receipts Account holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current assets but for which
cash seftlement has yet to take place. Under statutory amangements, the Councll does not freat these gains as
usable for financing new capital expendifure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash
setiement eventually fakes place, amounts are fransferred to the Capital Recelpts Reserve.

At Aprll -
Other Movements R N

L (]

] Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arlse on the General Fund
balonce from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year e.g. staff annual leave
entilement carried forward at the end of the financlal year. Statutory arrangements are expected to require that the
impact on the General Fund is neutralised by transfers to or from this Accumulated Absences Account

) [
Al 1 April (1.210,067) (966.754)
Difference between finance and other costs and Income
caloulated on an accounting basis and finance costs
caleulated in accordance with statutory requirements
204,673 (243.313)

At 31 March

{1,005,394)

(1,210,067)
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4] Provisions Discount Rate Reserve

The Provisions Discount Rate Reserve covers the arrangement, put In place by the Department under Its amendment
fo the 2018/19 accounts direction (see DfC circular 18/19). to allow for mitigation of the costs not allowed for by
Counclls who had adopted the HM Treasury Central Government discount rate for long-term provisions such as
Landfill cosfs.

sions Discount Rate Reserve 31/03/2023 3103720622

S [3
At 1 Agril (415,715) (608,748)
Difference between finance and other costs and income
colculated on an accounting bosls and finance costs
caleulated in accordance with statutory requirements
415715 193,033
Other Movements . =

At 31 March

This reserve was fully utilised, due largely 1o changes in financial assumptions on interest rates and discount factors.

Significant Trading Operations

The Council does not have any significant trading operations

Agency Services

The Council does not engage in any agency services,

Joint Arrangements
The Council does not have any tfransactions In this areq.

Related Party Transactions

A Related Party Transaction is @ transfer of resources or obligations between related parties, regardiess of whether a
price is charged. Related Party Transactions exclude fransactions with any other entity that is a related party sclely
because of its economic dependence on the Council or the Government of which it forms part, A related party is
one that has the abtlity to control the other porty or exercise significant Influence over the other party In making
financial and operating decislons. This Includes cases where the related party entity and another entity are subject to
common control but excludes providers of finance in the course of their normal business with the Councll and Trade
Unions in the course of their normal dealings with the Council. In addition where the relationship with the Council
and the eniity is solely that of an Agency (see note 29) these are not deemed to be Related Party Transactions.

Central government has significant influence over the general operations of the councll - it Is responsible for

providing the statutory framework within which the council operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form
of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the council has with other parties.

Council received an annual operating grant from the Department for Communities, During 2022/23 It received
£6.3m (2021722 £3.3m) in grant as reported in note 10a.

The Council have a Service Level Agreement (SLA) that agrees o provide financial and administrative services as
necessary for Armagh Economic Development Group (AEDG).

Transactions with related pariles not disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are set out below, where a
description of the nature, the amount of the transaction is as follows:

The Councll paid grants of £650,042.21 to a number of organisations in which Councillors and Councli officers had an
interest. These grants were made with proper considercation of declaration of interests.
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Membership of External Bodies

ABC Sports Forum

Ancre Somme

Armagh Athletic Club

Armagh Business Centre

Armagh Observatory Planetaurium
Ballyhegan GFC

Clan Na Gael

Cralgaven Travellers Support
Crosskeys

Donacloney Community Garden Group
Donacloney Crange Hall Association
Donacloney RBL

East Border Region

Education Authority

Fane Vdley

Friends Of St Patricks

ICBAN

James Speers & Thomas Johnston
Jim Speers

Keady Community First Responders
Kilclunney Community Hub

Local Government Partnership Traveller
Lough Neagh Partnership Ltd
Loughgall Football

Maghery Matters Regeneration
Maidens Of Macha

Mayfair

Natlonat Association Of Councillors
NI Dexter Cattle Sqclety

NI Museums Councils

NILGA

PCSP

Portadown 2000

Rathiriland Masonic Lodge 80
Recharge You

Redrock Development

Richhill Bullding Preservation
Solace Group Lid

Solace In Business

St Ronans College

TADA

The Appleby Trust

The National Association Of Councilllors
The Somme

Tir Na Nog

TIBS

Ulster Orchestra Society Lid
Waringstown PS

107

Number of Members Grants Other
Payments
1) 1
6 60.000.00
2 1.200.00
1 11.007.00
1 60.000.00 6,535.08
1 4,423.05
1 20,000.00
1 400.00
1 3.752.25
1 400.00
1 1,000.00
1 2,900.00
1 1,000.00
Q 82,292.68 20,000.00
n 23,637.60
1 15,061.22
1 1.200.00
4 15,000.00
1 19.081.48
1 134,473.25
1 2,500.00
1 2,000.00
3 500.00
6 22.000.00
1 350.00 300.00
1 1,376.00
1 1.390.00
2 1,993.00
8 624.00
1 30.00
1 805.00
8 72,463.87
10 157,785.15
3 19,251.26 1,014.80
1 1,077.60
1 200.00
1 827.20
1 7.900.00
1 8,181.25
1 147.692.92
1 11.650.00 2,850.00
1 8.136.34
1 7.243.60
8 3.280.00
2 1.280.00
1 13.500.00
1 1.550.00
1 3,600.00
1 40.00
116 65004221 336.712.39




Council Is represented by 10 Counclilors on the Policing & Community Safety Partnership, one of which acts as
Chadirperson. During 2022/23 Councll provided £158k of funding to the Parinership and annuotly provides legal,
financial and personnel services for which it received £nll grant In 2022/23 (2021/22 £nil).

Payments were alse made during 22/23 to the following Local Authorities

Payment

£

Ards and North Down Borough Council 1,349
Mid and East Antrim Borough Councll 13,075
Lislburn and Castlereagh City Council 108,882
Mid Ulster District Council 212,987
Belfast Clty Council 101,164
Fermanagh and Omagh District Council 82,988
Derry City and Strabane District Council 56,839
Antrim and Newtownabbey Borough Council 25,150
Newry and Mourne District Councll 83,550
Causeway Coast & Glen 834
686,818

k3 Prior Year Re - statement

The Council has no prlor year restatements

KKI Events after the Reporting Period

Council has no events to report

kY- B Date of authorisation for issue

The Chief Financial Officer authorised these financial statements for issue on 28th September 2023,
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